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RG&E Service
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l The Company supplies electric and gas service 7
'Wi#'4J wholly within the State of New York, and is engaged in
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around the City of Rochester. _m

- 'Q:@ #mg
.

tion of approximately 900,000, is well diversi-
, F g W M f , &[

"'

S. , sThe Company's territory, which has a popula. <

gg g g |ROCHESTERfied among residential, commercia; and in. ,

gn %f i g'" 'y; f ;in@
>W'

dustrial consumers. In addition to the City
j "

79 ^Q <4
of Rochester, which is the third largest g4 > < < ,

0'
city and a major industrial center in the bi e. g

State, it includes a large and prosperous L.<w. JJ #. ; & ' J C 1 V<,
.

*

- g _ e." 9
, m'- xws> :

-
, ,.- .

farming area. ;g g,
g, . yy .;g , , . ,

% a),Y Yk-{ Yj$ .. ', &,

['?.o o , g 6|| '&
_m .

, |:| ' || .[fb$ff ;

, | %$,h
$$-

'JWQ
, ;4m. ,

& ds >

p

= j x> ,

Contents Shareholder and Investor *

Relations Information
Highlights 1
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should be directed to David C. Heiligman,
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Appointments 5
Communications regarding changes of (See page 35 for description of plan)
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The color of our annual report cover w rk Stock Exchange (212)250-6000
this Year duI>licates the new color of (Stock Symbol-RGS) Form 10 K Annual Reportour fleet vehicles. The old dark
green is being replaced by " Doeskin Transfer Agent and Registrar The Company will provide, without charge, a

Chase Lincoln First Bank, N.A. copy of the Annual Report on Form 10-K filedTan." Lighter colors provide added
Corporate Agency Department with the Securities and Exchange Commis-

safety on the road.
Ibst Office Box 1250 sion with respect to fiscal year 1988, upon
Rochester, New Wrk 14603 written request of any shareholder addressed

The blue styled RG&E logo on our
@) 25858N to the Secretary.

cover is also placed on the doors of
the newly painted fleet vehicles.
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Source of 1988 Revenue Dollar Use of 1988 Revenue Dollar

Electric Resenues s

dennal 2M Dectric Fuel &
i rchasedDectricity 128

Commercial 194

chasd &s A
Induarial 10*

Other 74 Taxes 17''

@ $.70 |Other Utihties. 44

Wages & Benefita 134 |
|

A t at i 94

Gas Revenues ,

. ) Other Operations 13t
Residential . 204

Commercial 64 Interest 9e

in6strial - 1*'
~

Dividends & 1' Uat O $.30
Renvested Dmings $1.00 .other

Sales, Revenues and Earnings %

Financial (Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts) 1988 1987 Change

liighlighis Electricity to customers
Kilowatt-hours 6,197,117 5,948,763 4

Revenue $ 513,617 $ 489.215 5

Electricity to other utilities
Kilowatt-hours 1,149,900 1,047,654 10

Revenue $ 29,966 $ 26.215 14

Gas
Therms sold and transportt 483,766 445,591 9

Revenue $ 230,395 5 216,058 7

Total operating revenues S 773,978 5 731,488 6

| Total operating expenses S 635,104 5 609.113 4

Operatmg incocie $ 138,874 $ 122,375 13

Nine Mile Two write-off, net - $ 262,000 -

Net income (loss) $ 76,114 $ (168,711) -

Earnings (loss) applicable to common stock $ 68,766 $ (176,858) -

Weighted average number of common stock shares outstanding 30,513 29,728 3

Earnings (loss) per conunon share $2.25 $(5.95) -

Cash dividends paid per common share $ 1.50 $2.025 (26)

Rate of return on average common equity * 12.68 % 12.45 % 2

Book value per common shan-year end $17.69 $16.96 4

Utility Plant (Thousands)

Capital expenditures, less allowance for funds used
during construction $ I10,587 $ 120,965 (9)

Net unlity plant at December 31 $ 1,510,090 $1,474,746 2

Number of Customers at December 31
-

Electric 321,643 317,033 1

Gas 254,143 250,124 2

Number of Common Stock Shareholders
at December 31 41,834 44,127 (5)

Number of Employees at December 31 2,600 2.558 2

*Endudes d:sallourd Nine Mde Two costs uniten off an 1987

.

_____2m_ _ . _ _ _ _ _ _ _ . - . . . _ . . .. .----..-.-am-h



m

Letter to Shareholders

)i
) 1

he Year 1988:For your raised by the NRC. Niagara advises Retained Earnings and |

Company,1988 was a good year. that the outage will continue until Dividends:In 1987, the Company

Revenues, earnings per share and mid-February 1989, delaying until wrote off $262 million as its share

unit sales of electricity and gas all late February the unit's return to of the settlement agreement

increased. Also, and perhaps more full power. reached between the Nine Mile

significant, the Nine Mile Two Two cotenants and the New York2,

State Public Service Commissionnuclear power plant was com- Sales:We saw continued healthy
(PSC)(see Note 10 oa page 28).pleted and went into commercial growth in unit sales of electricity
That write-off forced us to reduceoperat,on m the spring. and gas in 1988. A prevailingi

' the annual common stock divi-
strong economy in our service ter-

dend from $2.20 a share to $1.50
N!nc Mile Two Completed ritory helped advance 1988 unit

share.
The plant's completion was a long- sales over the previous year's

awaited event that culminated levels. Kilowatt-hour sales to cus- ._ We plan to rebuild reta.med=
13 years of RG&E involvement with tomers for the year were up 4.2 e rnings to a level at least equal to
a 14 percent share of ownership in percent. Therms of gas sold and the annual disidend requirement
the project. The delays in con- transported rose 8.6 percent. In f r both common and preferred
struction, periods of high interest 1988 we added 4,600 electric cus-

shares before considering any
and inflation rates, additional tomers and 4.000 gas customers.

increase in the common stock
regulatory requirements and a This was the 4th cimsecutive year

dividend rate.
series of technical problems made in which customer growth main-
recent years the most difficult in tained record levels. During 1988 we were able to=

*-

our long corporate history. rebuild retained earnings from
5 Weather also favorabN~ $17.6 million at the beginning of

5 The plant ran reasonably weil affected 1988 revenues and unit the year to $39.7 million at
during its initial period of opera- sales. A very hot summer brought

ye t's end.
tion. On October 1, the plant was heavy use of air conditioning
taken out of service for scheduled equipment. On August 3, a new
maintenance and inspection. In summer peak electric load record Electric Capacity:Our share of
December, senior managers of the of 1,275,000 kilowatts was set. the Nine Mile Two capacity, or

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commis- This was 5.8 percent above the 151,000 kilowatts, gives us suffi-

sion (NRC) conducted their nation- previous summer peak reached in cient baseload capacity to meet

wide biannual review of nuclear July of 1987. expected electric demand well into

power plant performance. On the 90s. Also contributing to our
capacity is our contract that allowsDecember 20, the NRC advised Earnings: Improved revenues in
us to continue buying inexpensiveNiagara Mohawk Power Corpor - 1988 pmvided a welcome gain in
hydroelectric power from the Newtion, operator of the plant, that earnings. Per-share earnings of
Y rk Power Authority. The originalthey will be closely monitoring common stock for 1988 were
contract was to have expired at theNine Mile Two. Plants selected for $2.25 compared with $2.12 per
end of 1989. The new contract thatclose monitoring are those identi- share in 1987 excluding the effect

fied as having operational weak- of the Nine Mile Two write-off.
extends hydropower purchases
through the year 2007 providesnesses that call for closer including a write-off of $262
c ntinued benefits for our residen-we attention. million for disallowed Nine Mile
tial electric customers and helps" Two costs,1987 earnings showed a

]{ 5 Niagara Mohawk Power Cor- loss of $5.95 per share; keep RG&E competitive.

poration is working to correct the
" " " '

problems and relieve the concerns

- . - . _



5 A good electric generation . . . ~ .
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mix also keeps us competitive. We
'"

,
.

have a mix of coal, hydroelectric
,

and nuclear generated electricity.
More than ha!f of our customers' - )

' 3'

electric requirement is supplied by .
.

nuclear power from our wholly'

i owned and operated Ginna
.

'

| nuclear power plant and from our
~

.

! share of the Nine Mile Two plant.
,

| Nuclear fuel still holds a substan- [ '

. y
tial cost advantage over alterna- 3 .

I "'
.

tives, including coal. | ,

'

The Ginna Plant:In 1988, the -

'

-

c
'''

Ginna nuclear plant again had an -

excellent operating record. The -'

'

) '

| plant was available 86 percent of
i the time. That's a high rating com-

|- pared with the national average
| for nuclear power plant availability

as is the plant's 85 percent capac.
, ,

,

ity factor for the year. Capacity
.

*

factor is a measure of how much
of the plant's potential production

A.| was achieved.

; .

|
Rate Stabill:ation:In 1988,

, ,

RG&E reached an agreement with g.

, ,

the PSC that the Company will not
yu,,yy 3,,, , 7,, ,,, , c, y y,,,,

ask to raise electric or gas rates to
be effective before July 1,1990.
This agreement will have kept the most of our capital requirements with a mc, dest capitalization of

base rates for electricity and gas from internal sources. We did, $1 million, is creating and market-

unchanged for at least two and a however, take advantage of a tax- ing computerized interactive video

half years, stabilizing rates for our exempt bond issue last December training software for use in com-

customers and helping to promote that provided $25.5 million at an merce and industry. The company

business expansion in our nine- eight and three-eighths percent also produces software that makes

county service territory. interest rate. environmental regulatory compli-
ance record keeping much

I' IMP '''CapitalRequirements:With ~ Divenification:We made our>

the completion of the Nine Mile first entiy into a diversified, E While the Company may con-

Two plant, our capital needs have wholly owned subsidiary in 1988 sider other diversification opportu-

been reduced from previous years. when we created a company nities, the Utilicom venture is the

We are in a position to finance called Utilicom. This venture, only such diversification we plan

_ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ . -



letter to Shareholders

\

}
!

for the time being. We intend to The Outlook-Becoming the 5 We believe we are on the right*

stay close to our primary Best: We expect to see more com- track. We have our mission before

business-energy production, petition as deregulation of energy us with specific goals to achieve.

service and sales. markets intensifies. Deregulation The Nine Mile Two project is com-
will bring about profound changes pleted. A rate freeze, continuing
for us and our customers. While cost control measures, fine produc-Icadership Recognized:We

want to recognize the valuable we can't now predict when, how tivity from our dedicated
'

and who will benefit from the employees, a new consumercontributions in corporate leader-
ship made by former Chairman of changes, we are convinced there is program known as Customer Con-

the Board and Chief Executive only one strategy that can be suc- nection and an aggressive market-

Officer Paul W. Briggs and former cessful in the competitive arena- ing effort combine to move us into

Vice Chairman of the Board Keith become the best. a strong tomorrow.
'

W. Amish. Paul retired on Decem-
5 Becoming the best is a con- 5 We are optimistic at RG&E.ber 1 af ter 43 years of service,

and, after 41 years at RG&E, Keith sensus reached by your senior There are new challenges ahead

retired on September 1. Each management. We've spent a good in this business. We believe we

guided the Company through the deal of time identifying specific have the talent, people and drive

difficult Nine Mile Two period, and goals for the future, and pinning to make the challenges work for

each agreed to postpone regular down our corporate mission. us, our customers, and for you, the
shareholders. We will becomeretirement to see the Company

through to the comrnerciH opera- Our my.on as to k Me the best.
.

##*'"#"# # " ## " N ",tion of the plant. With their guid- ##"' E*# '' U#ance the Company weathered the US an e6ed n." # "P " " /%p ,j''e 8HPP u ofh
difficult financial and regulatory #"#@ ""#"I"'##8"##"8

Har2n$. saddockyears created by the Nine Mile byoptime ingcustomer.

chai an of the BoardTwo project. All of us, employees, #"#'* "###"' must r return and Chief Executwe
shareholders and customers swe N cerand employw acMmment.
Paul and Keith a great dei

We set several identifiable five-
year goals. /
s increase customer satisfaction
a Promote employee and public Roger W. Kober

Presidentsafety' and Chief Operating
a Optimize employee ofncer

achievement
e Attain decreases in the real rebruary 3.1989

cost of our products
a Earn the allowable return on

equity
a increase sales margins
a Develop flexible price struc-m

tures to recognizec.

competitiona
= 1mplement innovative use ofn*=

cn assets

a Develop conservative diver-
sification projects

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ . _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ .__ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ .____ __ _
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Gockwar hum upper Icit Robert E Smith. WdtredJ Schrouder.Jr, David C Heilmman.
andHowardE Rowley

On June 15,1988, the board of directors elected Harry G. Saddock as chairman of
the board and chief executive officer and Roger W. Kober as president and chief operat-

,

' ing officer. Those appointments became effective upon the retirement of former Chair-
man of the Board and Chief Executive Officer Paul W. Briggs on December 1,1988.
Former Vice Chairman of the Board Keith W. Amish retired on September 1,1988.,

| In other appointments, David C. Heiligman was named vice president, secretary and

| treasurer of the corporation.
Howard E. Rowley was appointed vice president, gas and transportation.
Wilfred J. Schrouder, Jr. became vice president, employee relations and public affairs.
Robert E. Smith was appointed vice president, production and engineering.

. -
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~

| Board Appointments .
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hf Richard Rose Roger W Kober

t the 1988 annual rneeting of shareholders in May, M. Richard Rose, Ph.D. was
ekted to the board of dirxtors. He is president of the Rochester Institute of Technol-
ogy (RIT). a position he has held since 1979. Dr. Rose replaced Paul A. Miller, presi-
dent emeritus and professor at RIT, who retired from the board after 14 years of service
as a director.

President and Chief Operating Officer Roger W. Kober was elected to the board of
directors effective December 1,1988.

i
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

h

3 The following is Management's costs which may be included in the ing issues with respect to the Nine l
assessment of significant factors Company's rate base. As a result of a Mile Two Settlement. I

'

which have affected the Company's rate agreement approved by the PSC 5 in September 1988 the Company
financial condition and operating in July 1988. the Company's full received $40.6 million from Niagara

results. As indicated below, the Com- investment in allowable Nine Mile as part of the Nine Mile Two Settle-

6 pany's participation in the Nine Mile Two capital costs, assuming an ment. This reimbursement had been

Two project has had and will continue April 15,1988 commercial operation recognized in 1987 in determining

to have a substantial impact on its date, has now been included in rate the $262 million Nine Mile Two write-
financial condition and earnings. In base for the rate year beginning off described above. Refer to Note 10

the spring of 1988, Nine Mile Two August 1,1988. of the Notes to Financial Statements

entered commercial operation 5 The PSC has fixed April 5,1988 for additional information regarding

marking the completion of the co+ as the Nine Mile Two commercial the Company's investment in Nine

struction and pre-operational testing operation date for Niagara and Long Mile Two.

phases of the project. Island Lighting Company, two of the
project's five cotenants. The PSC has Liquidity and

Nine Mile Two not yet taken formal action on the Capital Resources
subject with respect to the rates and

The combination of $40.6 million inThe Company owns a 14 percent accounts of the Company. The Com.
share of the Nine Mile Two facility, a pany's 1988 rate case settlement uti- cash received from Niagara as dis-

cussed above, lower construction1,080,000 kilowatt nuclear generating lized a hypothetical date of April 15,
unit that was constructed and is being 1988 for commercial operation of expenditures, additional refunding of
operated by Niagara Mohawk Power Nine Mile Two, but contemplated that higher cost securities, and the fulb
Corporation (Niagara) near Oswego, an actual commercial operation date year effect of the 1987 rate increase
New York. The Company's primary might be separately adopted. The improved the Company's cash flow

capital commitment over the past C6mpany believes'it likely that the in 1988.

several years has been for the con- PSC will ultimatelv select April 5,
struction of this facility and,in the 19S8, as the appropriate commercial
spring of 1988, construction was com- operation date for the Company.
pleted and the unit entered commer- 5 in 1987, the Company wr$te off apital Requirements

.

cial sers ice. Niagara is operating the $262 million (net of tax) of its invest- The Company's capital requirements
unit on behalf of all owner cotenants ment in Nine Mile Two (see Rate Base, for the three-year period 1986-1988
pursuant to a full power operating Change and Regulatory and the current estimate of capital

Accounting' recognition of the Ninerequirements through 1991 are sum-license which the Nuclear Regulatory Policies) n
Commission (NRC) issued on July 2 M le Two Settlement. The Company marized in the table on page 7.
1987 for a 40-year term beginning will recognize any adjustment in that 5 For 'he period 1989 to 1991, the
October 31,1986. The NRC m Decem- amount necessari to conform to the Company anticipates construction
ber 1988 added Nine Mile Two to its PSC recognized commercial operation requirements to averag' e approximately
list of nuclear plants which require date. A change from the May 15,1988 $120 million per year. in addition to
"close monitoring" by it, a category of commercial operation date assumed its construction expenditures, the
plants identified as having weak- by the Company in the 1987 write-off Company has mandatory securities
nesses warranting such attention.1.he w I result in additional income or

tions, which total app'g fund obliga-
maturities and sinkin

roximately'NRC s action came during an outage loss of approximately $6 milhon (net
of Nine Mile Two for repairs and of ux) pu month. PSC confirmation $100 million over the next three years
planned maintenance. Niagara has of the commercial operation date as of' through 1991.
advised the Company that the outage April 5,1988, would diminish the 5 Included in the table on page 7
will continue until mid-February Company's loss. However, as are the carrying charg'es, or financing
1989, delaying until late February the presented in Note 10 of the Notes to costs. associated with major projects

* unit s return to full power. Financial Statements, resolution of under construction. These carrying
= In October 1986 the New York certain items currendy being disputed costs become a part of the capitalized"

ad State Public Service Commission with the PSC could result in'other cost of the related pmject. The
(PSC) issued an order approving a set- adjustments to the loss recognized by Company begins to earn a cash returnna

ne tiement proposal (Nine Mile Two Set- the Company. The Company is on its investment, including these car-
tiement) which limits to $582 million unable to determine at this' time the rving costs, when the coct of the
(less prepaid financing charges cur- adjustment necessary,if any, to recog- project is included in rate bese, which
rently estimated at $96 million) the. nize the resolution of these outstandI generally is at the time such pcoject is
amount of Nine Mile Two construction

'

_ _ - _ _ _ - - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ __ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ __
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mately $3.6 million. As discussed
,

Cepit:1 Requirements under Liquidity, i'inancing and Capital
Structure, the Company was also able .

Actual Projected
to lower its cost of capital in 1988 by

1986 1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 redeeming approximately $60 million
. Type of Facilit,es (Millions of Dollars)i of high-cost senior securities. 7'

Electric Property:
' Production $101 $ 60 $ 39 $ 46 $ 32 $ 26 Projected CapitalRegulmments.
Transmission and Distribution 25 22 28 24 34 32 With no specific plans for major
Street Lighting and Other 2 2 1 3 3 2 additions to generating capacity, the

Subtotal 128 84 68 73 69 60 Company expects toirrry out a
Nuclear Fuel 12 16 17 19 17 20 program to extend th( operating life

Total Electric 140 100 85 92 86 80 of existing generating units and to
,

Gas Property. 13 14 15 16 15 15 make ongoing modifications to the
Common Property 7 7 7 11 13 14 Ginna nuclear plant and Nine Mile

Total 160 121 107 119 114 109 Two. In addition, the Company's con-
Carrying Costs: struction program will focus on the

Allowance for Funds Used During - need to serve new customers, to
Construction (AFUDC) 45 8 4- 4 6 5 provide for the replacement of obso-

Deferred Financing Charges included lete or inefficient utility property and
m Other income 5 6 1 2 2 -

to modify facilities consistent with the
Total Construction Requirements 210 135 112 125 122 114 most current environmental and

S,ecunties Redemptions, Maturities and safety regulations. The projected
Sinking Fund Obligations * 55 91 69 35 2a, 40 1989 construction requirements

Total Capital Requirements $265 $226 $181 $160 $147 $154 reflect primarily additional expendi-
*Euludes pmspective rehnancings. tures at the Ginna nuclear plant
Note: AIEDCJn 19% has not been restated to n flect the disallowance of certain lune Mile lito plant aggpc;ggcg g;gyjgggecong mangggn7y

costs recognized by the Contpany in 198L

plant modifications to comply with

put into service. Certain Nine Mile $112 million, well below the average recent NRC directives and overall

~ Two plant construction costs, for the prior two years. Electric efforts to maintain the high standards

however, were included in rate base production plant requirements for of performance the Company has set

prior to commercial operation. This 1988 included $17 million of expendi- for the plant.

action, while reducing the amount of tures made at the Company's Ginna 5 In addition to its projected con- ;

AFUDC, enhanced the Company's nuclear plant and $16 million of struction requirements, the Company

cash flow at such time. With the full expenditures for Nine Mile Two, also has future maturities and sinking

. recognition of allowable Nine Mile including $3 million for post-in- fund obligations as indicated in the

Two plant construction costs now in service projects. The Company also table above and may consider, as con-

rate base (see Rate Base, Accounting invested $26 million to upgrade elec- ditions warrant, the redemption or

Change and Regulatory Policies)and tric distribution facilities to maintain refinancing of certain long-term

construction projects of a shorter customer service standards for both securities. j

duration than Nine Mile Two, the existing and new customers. In addi- = The Company's capital expendi- 1

Company expects thelevel of AFUDC tion, the Company spent $17 million tures program is under continuous |
to stabih7e in the $4 million to for nuclear fuel, largely at the Ginna review and will be revised depending

$6 million range for the next several nuclear plant. upon the progress of major construc- )
= In the Gas Department, the tion projects, customer demand for jyearse ln addition to AFUDC, carrymg

: chargesinclude the recognition of replacement of older gas services, the energy, rate relief, government man-

certain customer prepaid financing relocation of gas mains for highway dates and other factors.

costs discussed below under Rate improvement, and the installation of i

Base, Accounting Change and gas services for new load resulted in
Regulatory Policies. construction expenditures of $16 mil-

lion, including AFUDC,in 1988. i

1988 Capital Requirements. With 5 Ibtal cap' ital requirements in j
the completion and commercial oper- 1988 also included mandatory sinking
ation of Nine Mile Two, construction fund obligations totaling approxi- !
expenditures for the year dropped to j

|
_ _ _ - _ - _ - _ -
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

\ n
R JIquidity, Financing and paper. To replace an expiring revolving tion of Series P Preferred Stock fol-

Capital Structure credit agreement, a new agreement lowed an open-market purchase and

totaling $90 million and effective sinking fund redemption earlier in the
During 1988, lower construction DecenIber 1,1988 was negotiated by year, which totaled approximately
requirements, compared with pnor the Company with certain domestic 33,000 shares, thereby eliminating all

Years. mPm Ca5 0 W an Um banks. Certain restrictive covenants outstanding shares of Series P stock.
8 the need to obtain external financing. contained in the Company's pnor = in December 1988, the Company

internally generated funds were suffi' revolving credit agreement and relat- issued $25.5 million of First Mortgage
cient to fund the Company's capital ng to Nine Mile Two were removed in 8%% Bonds, Series 00, to secure an
requirements for the year. Notwith' the new agreement, thereby enabling equal amount of tax-exempt pollution
standing the Company s strong cash the Company to obtain greater short- control revenue bonds issued by the
position, new common stock shares term financing flexibility. The new New York State Energy Research and
were issued through the ongoing revdving credit agreement expires Development Authority. Proceeds
Automatic Dividend Reinvestment December 1,1991, but may be from this financing were used to reim-
and Stock Purchase Plan (ADR Pian) extended annually for a successive burse the Company for prior expendi-
which improved common equity three-year period. At December 31, tures associated with the Company's
capitalization. In addition, the 1988, the Company had no short-term share of certain pollution control facil-
Company obtained low-cost tax- debt outstanding. ities at Nine Mile Two.
exempt financing with the issuance of 5 The Company's Certificate of 5 The Cornpany in 1988 raised a
a new series of first mortgage bonds incorporation (Charter) provides that total of $10.4 million to finance its
in connection with a Nine Mile Two unsecured debt may not exceed capital expenditures program by
pollution control financing. A strong 15 percent of the Company's total issuing approximately 619,000 shares
cash position enabled the Company capitalization (excluaing unsecured

of common stock throug'nds of its con-
h its ADR

to retire certain high-cost senior debt) without the approval of at least a Plan. To meet the dema
capital obligations without having to majority of the holders of outstanding struction program and to maintain a
refinance such redemptions. Such preferred stock. As of December 31, prudent capital structure, the
refundings contributed to a drop in 1988, the Company would be able to Company over the past three years
the Company's embedded cost of debt incur approximately $6 million of has issued common stock at a market
from 8.90% at the end of 1987 to unsecured debt under this provision price below the book value per share.
8.71% at year-end 1988. Likewise, the before needing to obtain the required Such sales have had a dilutive effect
Company's embedded cost of pre- approval as indicated. In order to be on the book value per share at the
ferred stock was 6.72% at the end of able to use its revolving credit agree- time of issuance. The Company's
1988 compared with 7.09% a year ment, the Company has created a book value per share did increase,
earlier. subordinate mortgage which secures however, during 1988. Book value per
= With construction activity as borrowings under its revolving credit share at December 31,1988 was
presently projected and the Con - agreement that might otherwise be $17.69. Per-share book value of $16.98
pany's current cash position, the restricted by this provision of the at December 31,1987 was signifi-
Company anticipates it . vill not Company's Charter. cantly lower than the $24.93 book
require additional long-term financing 5 As part of the Company's contin- value per share a year earlier and
to meet its capital requirements for uing program to improve its capital reflects the net Nine Mile Two write-
the next several years. Should capital structure and reduce its embedded off in 1987 of $262 million ($8.81
requirements exceed current estimates cost of capital, two ecurity issues per share).
and create the need for external were redeemed in 19 48. On Novem-
financing, the Company anticipates ber 1,1988, $40 million of First Mort. CapitaiStructure. The Company's
utihzmg its revolving credit agree- gage 11% % Bonds, Series NN, were retained earnings at December 31,1988
ment. Certain of the Company's finan' iedeemed at a redemption price of were $39.7 million, up approximately
cial agreements contam covenants 105.22 percent of the principal $22 million compared with a year
which may restrict the Company's amount; and on December 1,1988, earlier. Approximately 38.0 percent of" ""

ability to incur additional indebted: 183,108 outstanding shares of 8.60% the Company's capitalization ar*
a"d ness if the need for external financmg Preferred Stock, Series P, were December 31,1988 was comprised of
h is beyond that provided by the Com' redeemed at the redemption price of common equity (including retained

%~ pany s revolving credit agreement. $105 per share. Pavment for these earnings), with the balance being

redemption transa'ctions was provided comprised of 6.7 percent preferred
Financing, Inten.m financing is out of cash and temporary cash equity and 55.3 percent long-term

investments. The December redemp. debt. These percentages are based on
rg th I an r o s r d rn al
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the Company's capitalization exclu-
sive of its long-term liability to the RateIncreases !

"

Federal Department of Energy (see Granted Amount of increase
Note 1 of the Notes to Financial State- (Decrease) percent Authorized i

ments). The Company's retained earn- Class of Effective (Annual Basis) increase Rate of Return on |

' ings reflect a $262 million write-off in Service Date of increase (000's) (Decrease) Rate Base Equity 9 i

;1987 for disallowed Nine Mile Two Electric February 1,1985 $ 4,535* 0.9 % 12.52 % 16.00 % i
iplant costs as discussed below under July 14,1985 5,799 1.3 12.09 15.00

the heading Rate Base, Accounting Jariuary 2,1986 2,845' 06 12.09 15.00
Change and Regulatory Iblicies. Upon July 20,1986 20,895 4.4 10.75 12.60

,

resolution of certain regulatory issues January 2,1987 1,223' O.2 10.75 12.60 i

associated with the Nine Mile Two July 17,1987 16,198 3.4 10.48 13.20 ;

plant, adjustments may be required January 4,1988 2,413' O.5 10.48 1320

which could increase or decrease the July 26,1988 - - 10.39 " 13.40 :

Company's retained earnings as dis-
Gas uly 14,1985 157 0.1 12.09 15.00

cussed in Note 10 of the Notes t July 20,1986 (3,185) (1.1) 10.75 12.60 '!
Financial Statements. It is the Com- '

January 2,1987 458* 0.2 10.75 12.60
pany's intention to move to a less July 17,1987 - - 10.48 13.20
leveraged capital structure through July 26,1988 - - 10.39 " 13.40
growth in retained earnings and the .sewndstepincrease allouxa
retirement of long-term debt tbrougn 'For the year beginning August I,1989, the authorized rate of n' turn on rate base is 10 46%

mandatory sinking fund redernptions
E" ' as prescribed by the Financial No amounts of disallowed costs were'truc ute t Co n w !! al o

Accounting Standards Board (FASB) recognized in 1988. The ultir, tate
consider the optional redemption of

and applied to New York State utilities amount of disallowed Nine Mile Two
high cost senior securities.

giving effect to the rate-making and costs to be recognized by the
accounting policies of the PSC. In Company cannot presently be deter-
September 1987 the Company adopted mined because of the urmertainties
revised financial accounting prin- associated with the implementation of
ciples prescribed by the FASB for dis- the Nine Mile Two Settlement, as

Lie Base, Accounting allowed plant costs (Statement of previously discussed.

Change and Regulatory Policies Financial Accounting Standards No. 90)
A,ew Mrk State Puhlle Service

and recognized for financial account.
in June 1988, the Compmy, PSC stafI, ing purposes an aggregate $262 Commission (PSC). The October
the New York State Consumer Protec- million after-tax write-off of disal. 1986 PSC order approving the
tion Board and other mtervening lowed Nine Mile Two plant costs Nine Mile Two Settlement limits to
parties to the Companys pending rate based on a 1986 settlement agree. $582 million (less prepaid financing
case, negotiated a rate settlement ment, discussed below, with the PSC. charges)the amount of Nine Mile Two
(the 1988 Rate Agreement)which was g .rhe 1987 net M tax write-off plant construction costs which may

. approved by the PSC one month later. includes the cumulative effect on be included in the Company's rate
The 1988 Rate Agreement freezes the retained earnings as of January 1, base. The Nine Mile Two Settlement,

- Company's base rates for electnc and 1987 of $193 million, the reversal of which-is under judicial challenge,
gas service at their present levels $22 million of AFUDC recognized resolved a proceeding established by
through at least June 1990. As part during the year and an additional the PSC in July 1985 to investigate the
of the 1988 Rate Agreement, the

$47 million to reflect other costs prudence of costs relating to the con-
Company was permitted toinclude recognized during 1987. The Company

struction of Nine Mile Two. To impie-
the balance of a!Iowable Nine Mile reflected the cumulative effect of the

ment the Nine Mile Two Settlement,
Two capital costs m rate base begin- accounting change of $193 million in the PSC for rate-making purposes
mng August 1988 A summary of ts Statement of income rather than reduced the Company's equity com-
recent PSC rate decisions is presented sing previously issued financial p nent of total capitalization, used to
m the table to the upper nght. statements. Accordingly, the net disal. calculate the Company's cost of

Accounting Change * The Company's I wance was presented separately for capital, effective August 1987. Th,si

accounting poh .cies conform to gener-
the eFact prior to January 1,1987, and action, which assumed a commercial-

fvr portion of the disallowance operation date of February 15,1988,
ally accepted accounting principles

~.: became known during 1987. effectively reduced future revenues by

- -_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - - - _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ - - - - _ _ - - _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ ~
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reducing the base on which future financing costs (or AFUDC)which are plier and paid by a gas distribution
rates would be calculated. expected to be recovered over the life company. The Company has sought
5 As mentioned above,the 1988 of the facility through amortization, rehearing of that apparent conclusion
Rate Settlement permits the Company if the PSC chooses to utilize these but, as of mid-January 1989, the
to include its allowable Nine Mile Two amounts to moderata customer rates. Company had not received a response

'10 capital costs in rate base beginning As permitted by the 1988 Rate Setle- from the PSC. The PSC has scheduled
August 1,1988. Also, essentially all ment, the Company in July 1988 hearings to determine whether gas
operating and maintenance expenses eliminated one-half of these deferred distribution companies should be
for plant operation are reflected in balances by offset (that is, equal required to absorb some portion of
rates. Other major provisions of the amounts of both the deferred debit such TOP costs and how that portien

.1988 Rate Settlement include: and deferred credit balances were recoverable from customers should be
s mina and h maMr, d akad among hm.Sta# ome

a Agreement by the Company to m at appmximaMy H5 million, PSC and the Company have entered
no changes in electric and gas will be eh,mmated by July c ,,,1992 mto an mien,m settlement which
base rates through at ! cast

if n t used pnor thereto as non-cash woula permit the Company to recover
June 1990- earnings for rate moderation purposes. from customers 65% of the TOP costs

a An equal sharing between cus- The 1988 Rate Agreement allows the during the continuation of the PSC
tomers and shareholders of Company to amortize $4.1 million of proceeding but other parties to the
any earnings above the autho- the $44.7 million deferred credit proceeding oppose this interim settle-
nzed return on common balance to Other income for the rate ment and the PSC had not acted on it
equity of 13.4 %. year ending July 31,1990, with a cor- as of mid-January 1989. At December

a Authority to includein income responding increase to the Company's 31,1988 the Company had deferred
$42 million in unbilled reve- rate base. Amortization of these $1.1 million of billed 'IDP charges.
nues and $5 million in deferred credits totaled $10.9 millica The Company is unable to estimate
deferred Nine Mile Two reve- through December 31,1988. either the amount which may ulti-
nues over the two-year period 5 Under the 1988 Rate Agreement, mately be included in its pipeline sup-
ending July 31,1990. (See the Company agreed to exclude from pliers' charges to it for TOP charges,
Operating Revenues and Sales.) rate base certain post-in-service Nine or the amount which it will be

a Permission to eliminate by Mile Two capital additions pending allowed to recover fram customers.

offset one-half of the deferred review of such expenditures by the

debit and credit balances in PSC.The PSC has allowed the Results of Operations
connection with the unused Company to accrue carrying charges

, , ,

portion of customer prepaid (AFUDC)on these expenditures until The following financial review identi-

financing costs associated with final consideration for inclusion in fies the causes of sigmficant changes

Nine Mile Two(see following rate base is made. The 1988 Rate in the amounts of revenues and

paragraph) Agreement contemplated a separate expenses, comparing 1988 to 1987

5 Rate decisions prior to the 1988 proceeding late in 1988 to examine and 1987 to 1986. The Notes to Finan-

Rate Settlement had allowed the these amounts, currently estimated at cial Statements on pages 19 to 34 of

Company to include up to 5430 $13 million. The Company is unable this report contam additional informa-
tion. Upon the commercial operation

million of Nine Mile Two plant costs to predict what position the PSC will y

in rate base. This action had ultimately adopt or what adjustments of Nine Mile Two, recognized by the

enhanced the Company's cash flow to the Company's capitalization will Company m April 1988, the Company

and reduced the amount of AFUDC be required. began to record operating revenues

because AFUDC was not accrued on f in May 1988 the PSC ordered and operating expenses associated

those amounts included in rate base. that take-or-pay (TOP) charges from - with the plant's operation.

A comparable amount, however, cal- Bas pipeline suppliers should be

culated similarly to AFUDC and deferred by the Company and otheru, ,,

representing customer prepaid financ. New York State gas distribution com-
c,

ing costs, was calculated up to com. panies until the PSC determines if the |
a
g mercial operation and recorded on gas distribution companies should be perating Revenues

the Balance Sheet as a liability, shown required to absorb any portion of the and Sales
as a deferred credit. An equivalent TOP charges. In October 1988 the PSC

I- amount was recorded as a deferred appeared to have concluded that it Compared with the prior year, operat-

asset on the Company's Balance could deny recovery of TOP costs ing revenues increased six percent m

t Sheet, since it represents deferred billed by an interstate pipeline sup- 1988 after declining two percent m

|
!

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
mi
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Opemting Revenues Operating Revenues.

Increase or (Decrease) from Prior Year less Fuel Expenses
Electric Department Gas Department pg, afg

(Thousands of Dollars) 1988 1987 1988 1987
O Gas Revenues . 11

Customer Revenues
.Q Dectric Revenues . |(Estimated) from:

Rate increases $ 12,029 $ 19,924 $ (37) $ (1,499) sso {
- m, )Unbilled Revenues 7,198 - 1,330 - sus

Fuel Clause Adjustments (19,378) (11,841) (2,152) (18,865)
WWeather Effects (Heating) 660 (559) 9,187 (8,551) 84*

Customer Consumption 15,205 11,340 11,672 (2,654)
- - (6,174) (' 6,442). Transportation Gas

N Mi
m

Other 8,688 3,855 511 2,381 g#

k@~
Total Change in Customer Revenues 24,402 22,719 14,337 (45,630) $*
Electric Sales to Other Utilities 3,751 5.750 - - h ^Total Change in Operating Revenues S 28,153 $ 28.469 $ 14,337 5(45.630) A ,

A
%@

>

k
1987. Details of the revenue changes cash position. The Company has y g y3

@J
@Q~

P Fare presented in the table above. recorded unbilled accounts receivable
Operating revenues less fuel expenses of $45.9 rnillion as of December 31, 9

*
were also up in IP38 as shown in the 1988. In accordance with the 1988
graph to the right. Rate Agreement, $8.5 million of
5 Electric revenues derived from unbilled revenue was recognized in . .

rate increases, as presented in the the Company's 1988 Statement of 1986_ 1987-- 1988
table above, include approximately income. The deferred credit balance
$8.1 million in 1988 and $13.7 million ($39.8 million at December 31,1988) som eiscwie end ses revenues to 1ssa |

in 1987 which represent the Nine will be amortized monthly to reve. showed tecreases congered wim 19st

Mile Two in-service revenue require- nues in accordance with PSC rate
ments estimated in the Company's decisions. Under the 1988 Rate Agree-

rate proceedings. Since commercial ment, the Company will amortize to the Notes to Financial Statements,
operation of Nine Mile Two was revenues $20.6 million of these pretax earnings were reduced $1.1
delayed beyond the date assumed in deferred unbilled revenues in 1989. million in 1988 primarily reflecting
those rate orders, these revenues were Recognition of unbilled revenue will the variance between actual fuel costs
deferred through a debit (charge) to affect the Compa'1y's normal seasonal and generation mix compared with
operating expenses and, therefore, did earnings pattern beginning in 1989, rate assumptions. Earnings in 1987
not affect earnings. With the commer- since the recognition of revenues, were enhanced by $9.7 million on a
cial operation of Nine Mile Two, the primarily for the Gas Department, pretax basis related to these sharing
Company began to reverse these will occur in different months than in arrangements, primarily attributable
deferrals, as discussed under the the past. Accordingly, beginning with to provisions effective prior to
heading Operating Expenses, Exclud- 1989, fourth quartar earnings will be August 1987 associated with electric
ing Fuel. higher and first quarter earnings will sales to other utihties.
5 Beginning in July 1988 as part of be lower than in prior years. 5 The effect of weather variations
a rate decision, the PSC approved 5 The Company's fuel clause provi- on operating revenues is most meas-
recording of unbilled revenue. sions provide that customers and urable in the Gas Department, where
Accordingly, approximately $42 shareholders will share, generally on revenues from space heating cus-
million associated with the change in an 80%/20% basis, respectively, the tomers comprise about 90 percent of
accounting will be amortized to risks or benefits derived from varia- total gas operating revenues. Meas-
income during the period July 1988 to tions in electric fuel costs, generation ured on a customer billing degree day
July 1990. Unbilled revenues repre- mix and sales of electricity to other basis, the weather as related to
sent revenues for energy delivered to utilities compared with forecasted heating in 1988 was approximately
customers, but not yet recorded as amounts as established by the PSC. seven percent colder than 1987. Con-
income. As a non-cash item, such rev. As a result of these sharing arrange- versely, weather for all of 1987 was
enues do not enhance the Company's ments, discussed further in Note 1 of four and one-half percent warmer
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3 E Fluctuations in revenues from

Electric Market Profile electric sales to other utilities an'. Gas Market Profile
genetalIy related ta the Company s (Millions of Therms Sold and Transported)(Thousands ofMegawatt-hours Sold) customer energy requirements, New

. Q other Dectric Utiliti(s York Power Peol energy market condi- O Municipat O Gimmercia!

Q 06er Q Qimmercial tions and the availability of electric Q hidustrial Q Residential .
12

i ' Qindustrial ' Q Residential generation from the Company's ,u
48nuclear-fueled plants, including its m 3ru7 23

8998 share of Nine Mile Two. The availabil- "
**

1150 ity of power from Nine Mile Two, 7,

78 to
s along with generation from the Ginna

nuclear plant, allows the Company to
sell more fossil-fueled generation to ' not

" 2other utilities while retaining lower-i
cost nuclear-generated energy for thei

! Company's own electric customers. g ga
E Since October 1985 the 4 g
Company has transported gas for
certain large commercial and indus- F ?,#

trial customers (and, more recently, @ '; 3
<icertain large municipal customers) ,; ,

'

who are able to purchase natural gas
directly from producers and use the
Company's facilities to transport it. Iggg }gg7 ]ggg
Gas supplies transported in this

1986 1987 1988 manner, which amounted to 83.6 lies sesrgy salasas usN helppcas

million therms in 1988 and 67.5 . asemass assissases and see
essisessalm

Electric sesegy asles esRect a d million therms in 1987, are not
totascas amiss aits. included in Company therm sales.

These purchases cause decreases in
customer revenues, as shown in the 5 Total therms sold and trans-

than 1986 on a customer billing table on page 11, with offsetting ported increased in 1988 by 8.6 per-

degree day basis. decreases in fuel expenses, but do not cent after decreasing 3.5 percent in

5 As illustrated by the graph adversely affect earnings because 1987, as presented in the graph
above. These fluctuations reflect the

above, the sale of electnc energy is these customers are bMied at raies

well diversified among all major cus- which, except for the cost of gas, effect of weather variations, as previ-

tomer classes and a strong local approximate the rates charge'd the ously discussed, primarily on therm
sales to residential customers with gas

economy resulted in an increase of Company's other gas service
space heating. In 19S8, an increase in

electric sales to all major customer customers.

groups in 1988 and 1987. Unusually
warm weather during the summer
months of 1987, followed with even
warmer weather during the 1988 Operanng Expenses
summer months, resulted in an

increase or (Decrease) t om Prior Yearincreased use of air conditioning
(Thousands or Dd.. , 1988 1987

during both comparison periodi in _

$ 4,344 i 11,912Fuel for Electric Generationaddition, the continued strong growth
Purchased Electricity 3,832 (3,677)%

in the number of electric customersc, Deferred Fuel-Electric (869) (2,806)
contributed to increased sales of elec-~, Gas Purchased for Resale 7,038 (39,168)
tricity in 1988 and 1987. In August Other Operation 519 10,830h
19S8, the Company experienced a new Maintenance 6,451 1.357a, w ..
record demand of 1.24 a megawatts on Depnciation and Amortization 14,173 3.458

its electric system, or 5.8 percent Taxes Charged to Operating Expenses (9,497) (5.621)
at ove the prtTious record peak Total Change in Operating Expenses $25,991 5(23.715)

_ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ . . _ _ _ ______ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ ___ __
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gas therm consumption, as adjusted or benefit by, the first $825,000 of any
for normal weather, per heating cus- Nine Mile Two operating expense vari- Gas SuPP y -1 4

tomer and contmued growth in the ance from a forecasted amount of
for Di8tribut10n- j

,.

number of gas custoniers in 1988 and $13.3 million and then share 50
1987 bolstered therm sales. A!so, in percent of any remaining variance pons omums)
1988 several major dual-fuel indus- with its customers. A summary of the : O Gas Produced and Gas Purchased S ' 13
trial customers consistently used gas change in operating expenses for the Imm Firm Suppliers -

,

!

' during the year whereas in 1987 they 1988 and 1987 comparison periods is Q Gas Purchased on Spot Market' .

were fully or partially burning oil. presented in the table on page 12. ; 9 Transportation Gas Pacived.

*''*Energy Costs-Electric. The s [
'3increase in fuel expenses for electric ,

, 0Perating Expensesgeneration for both comparison !

periods reflects increased generation t
.

i" "from both the Company's fossil-fueled
88Compared with the prior year, oper- and nuclear generating units, includ- 3

'ating expenses increased 4.3 percent ing commercial generation from Nine 28
,

in 1988 following a 3.7 percent Mile Two. The increase in fuel
decrease in 1987, The 1988 increase, in expenses, however, was relatively less

,

part,is due to the recording of Nine than the increase in generation, .j
Mile Two operation and maintenance reflecting largely a drop in fuel costs,
expenses commencing in April 1988, as illustrated by the graph below left.

| as mentioned above in 1989, pur- 5 Fluctuations in purchased elec-
suant to the terms of the 1988 Rate tricity expense resulted primarily
Agreement, the Company will absorb, from changes in kilowatt-hours pur-

chased, together with increasing
average rates in 1987 and 1988. 84! '85 L'86 :'87l'88 :

Fuel Costs
.

Energy Costs-Gas. The gas c.as procurement gy the company and
'

per Million BTU'S pmcumment practices of the as rmer sas miomers reneas a

jg. Company reflect a more open-market more open-market approach

approach taking place in the gas
Mil ~ utility industry. This approach allows

- Coat ( the Company and several of its large- deferred asset, is subject to future PSC

fg : - .Nudear . consumption gas customers to take determination.
<

greater advantage of favorable spot
O eratingExpenses, ExcludingPsa market purchases, as illustrated by

the graph to the upper right. These fuel. Excluding accounting proce-
4 00 purchases, together with contract pur. dures which affect certain operatingm

chases, provide more flexibility while accounts, other operation expenses
m still assuring an adequate supply of were unchanged in 1987 in contrast

1/)0 gas. The variation in the cost of gas to an increase of approximately $20

| purchased reflects changes in the million in 1988. These additional

volume of gas purchased for the Com. other operation expenses in 1988|
5"

.. in pany's customers, coapled with lower include $10.7 million of expenses
3"

,1.00 . average rates for both comparison associated with the commercial opera-

periods. tion of Nine Mile Two Increasing

.s' As discussed under the heading other operation expenses in 1987 by=
-

New York State Public Service Com. $9.5 million was an accounting proce-
# #

mission (PSC), the Company at dure in connection with the deferral

December 31,1988 had deferred $1.1 of Nine Mile Two revenues (see Oper-
.= 1986 ? 1987 i1988' million of take-or-pay charges from ating Revenues and Sales). With the

gas pipeline suppliers. Disposition of commercial operation in April 1988 of
.Tw m W nucisar sus commues
ni menecam esvamese ever me such deferred charges, recorded on Nine Mile Two, accounting adjust-

ces e essen inw. the Company's Ealance Sheet as a ments were made to reverse pn,or

/
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revenue deferrals which had recog- tax changes through July 1990 and 1987. Disallowed costs for the period

nized recovery of Nine Mile Two opera- called for the adjustment of certain subsequent to January 1,1987 are

tion and maintenance expenses pnor accumulated deferred tax balances to reported under the caption "Other

to the actual commercial operation the 34 percent level over the two-year Income and Deductions" on the State-

date. Such accounting adjustments period ending July 1990, with the ment of income.

14
reduced other operation expenses by exception of deferred tax balances 5 AFUDC variances are generally

i a net amount of approximately $18 related to accelerated depreciation related to the amount of utility plant

million in 1988. and Ginna nuclear plant decommis- under construction not included in

f Higher maintenance expenses in sioning costs. The 1988 Rate Agree- rate base. AFUDC was not recognized

1988 reflect increased refueling shut- ment also provided for deferred on disallowed Nine Mile Two plant

down and maintenance expenses at accounting of any statutory increases costs; and, for 1988 and 1987, the

the Ginna nuclear plant and the or decreases in federal or state taxes amount of AFUDC reported reflects

recording of Nine Mile Two expenses which have an impact of $1 million or such disallowance. AFUDC reported

starting in April 1988. Increased more on the Company's tax expense in prior years has not been restated

maintenance costs at the Company's and occur subsequent to July 31, for such disallowed costs as a result of

fossil-fuckxl electric generating plants 1989. Such deferred balances will be the accounting change adopted by the

led to higher maintenance costs in preserved for disposition in the Com- Company and referenced above. Com-

1987 compared to a year earlier. pany's next rate proceeding. pared to 1987, the lower level of

f The recognition of Nine MileTwo 5 in December 1987, the FASB AFUDC for 1988 resulted primarily

depreciation expense, commencing issued a Statement of Financial from the transfer of Nine Mile Two

with the commercial operation of the Accounting Standards entitled utility plant under construction not

facility in April 1988, was responsible " Accounting for income Taxes" included in rate base to plant-in-

for most of the depreciation and amor- (SFAS-96). Among other things, service in April 1988.

tization expense variance between the SFAS-96 requires the Company to 5 Other income includes 56.4
1988 and 1987 comparison periods. adjust certain of its deferred tax assets million of non-cash earnings in 1987

and liabilities to reflect periodic and $4.5 milFon in 1986 associated
7' axes. Fluctuations in local, state changes in tax rates. In addition, the with the amortization of certain cus-
and other taxes reflect changes in Company may also be required to tomer prepaid Nine Mile Two financ-

gross income and gross carmngs provide deferred taxes for the effect of ing costs which had been deferred,
taxes, which are based on revenues, tax benefits previously flowed through as discussed under the heading

together with the effect of higher to the income Statement. SFAS-96 is New York State Public Service Com-

property taxes due to higher tax rates not required to be adopted by the mission (PSC). Other income in 1988
and assessments. Over one-half of the Company until the first quarter of resulted mainly from interest income
increase in local, state and other taxes 1990. The Company is presently on temporary cash investments.
in the 1988 comparison period unable to estimate the effects of the f Despite the issuance of addi-
resulted from the recognition of these adoption of SFAS-96, but absent addi- tional long-term debt over the three-
costs as operating expenses once Nine tional changes in the Federal tax code year period 1986-1988, long-term
Mile Two entered commercial and as the result of certain tax-related debt interest expense during this
operation. provisions contained in the 1988 Rate period declined primarily as a result
5 in October 1986, the Tax Reform Agreement (see previous paragraph). of the Company's optional redemp-

Act of 1986 (Tax Act) was enacted. As the Company does not believe the tions of certain high-cost first
a result of the Lx Act, the Company's earnings impact to be significant. mortgage bonds. '
marginal Federal income tax rate was
reduced from 46 percent in 1986 to
40 percent in 1987, with a further
reduction to 34 percent in 1988 and

cI ent t x f a dr q r d We atement M arninMummag"
income items Presented on page 15 is a table which"

the inclusion of unbilled revenues in
taxable income. The provisions of the As discussed above, the Company's summarizes the Company's common""#

Tax Act resulted in higher currently 1987 Statement of Income reflects earnings in total and on a per-share**

""""" payal,.e Federal income taxes, but a the cumulative effect as of Jan. basis as reported and as modified to

reduced total Federal income tax pro- uary 1,1987 of an accounting change exclude disalkiwed Nine Mile Two

vision for book purposes. The 1983 in connection with the write-off of dis- costs written off in 1987 and to

Rate Agreement incorporated these allowed Nine Mile Two plant costs in exclude AFUDC on these costs in

_--___ ___ _ _ _
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1987 and 1986. AFUDC as a percent-
age of such modified common earn- Earnings Summary i
ings.is presented in the graph below.

No additional Nine Mile ho plant . (Thousands o cI ) (Thou n per S
costs were written off in 1988. As dis- I0
cussed under the heading Nine Mile As Reported $ 68,766 30.5.o $ 2.25 15
Two, future adjustment to the 1987 1987
write-off may be recognized by the As Reported $(176,858) 29,728 S(5.95)
Company upon recognition by the Excluding Nine Mile Two Write-Off 5 63.0422 29,728 $ 2.12
PSC of a definitive commercial opera- 1986

tion date for Nine Mile Two and the As Reported 5 96,461 28,927 $ 3.33

resolution of certain issues being dis- Excluding Nine Mile Two Write-Off $ 67,1612 28.927 s 2.32

puted with the PSC regarding the Wighterl acerage shares outstanding.'

implementation of the Nine Mile Two ' Reported ea"unns modinea to exclude distowed sune Mite rue costs written ott in 1987 and ro
"'"d' A""""''''"* 'n miand m See Nw 10 orde Nas den naatsteniena

Settlement (see Note 10 of the Notes
to Financial Statements).

>

E in September 1987 the Company
announced a reduction in its quar.

. terly dividend rate from $.55 per '

2

share to $.375 per share, or $1.50 on ' AFUDC as a Percent i

an annual basis. This adjusted divi- Lof Earnings. ,

'
- -- J

dend rate which has been paid quar.
terly since the fourth quarter of 1987, ggg
resulted from the Company's analysis Q NmAMamings ; inancial Reportsof the PSC's 1987 rate decision which
indicated that anticipated earnings emnt) - M: Table of Contents j
were not expected to cover Common ' l# - lm: im

Page
Stock dividends at the former rate. a

Although the Company believes that Statement of income 16 |

dividend rate of $1.50 per share is
'

p Statement of Retained Earnings 16 !the current annual Common Stock
im Balance Sheet 17 ,.

sustainable, its ability to maintain the b Statement of Cash Flows 18s hCommon Stock dividand level and its v # :

Notes to Financial Statements 19-34 ;

Preferred Stock dividend is necessar. g f
ily dependent on future earnings, M w y Report of Independent j

% h Accountants 34 jwhich the Company cannot predict. j7

ff Common Stock and Dividends 35The Company's Charter provides for
"

m.

the payment of dividends on Pre- b $ Selected Financial Data 36,37a
ferred Stock and Common Stock out a- % i

M Electric Department Statist.ics 38 |
k,lof the surplus net profits (retained

j Gas Department Statistics 39'
earnings)of the Company. The s

; Interim Financial Data 40''
Company would not be able to pay <

Preferr xi or Common Stock dividends i |
-

4

- unkss positive retained earnings 3:-

were maintained. As of December 31,

1988 the Company's retained earnings
were approximately $39.7 million. ..g,.:g.

. The Company presently intends to
-

establish a retairred earnings base at *Eaniings inodified to exdude
disallowed Nine Mile Two costs written

least equal toits annual dividend off in 1987 and to exdude AFUDC on .
requirement for both preferred and - tiese costs in 1986 and IMI-

'

common stocks before considering an i

increase in the Common Stock divj- The quality el camings is knposed |
dend rate above the annual rate of *** *** dad 88 AN "anse ;
$1.50 per share. 1

I
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Statement of Income

(Thousands of Dollars) Year Ended December 31 1988 1987 1986

OperafingRevenues Electric $513,617 5 489,215 $466,496

} Gas 230,395 216,058 261,688

744,012 705.273 728,184

Electne sales to other utilities 29,966 26,215 20,465

Total Operating Revenues 773,978 731,488 748,649

OperafingExpenses Fuel Expenses
Fuel for electric generation 65,787 61,443 49,531

16 Purchased electricity 30,299 26,467 30,144

Electric deferred fuel (1,020) (151) 2,655

Gas purchased for resale 128,774 121,736 160,904

Total Fuel Expenses 223,810 209,495 243.234

Operating Revenues less Fuel Expenses 550,138 521,993 505,415

Other Operating Expenses
Operations excluding fuel expenses 159,689 159,170 148,340

Maintenance 52,575 46.124 44,767

Depmciation ana amornzation 69,703 55.530 52,072

Taxes-local, state ..J other 88,635 82,869 81,590

Federalincome tax 40,662 55,925 59,825

Total Other Operating Expenses 411,264 399,618 389,594

Operating income 138,874 122,375 115,821

OtherIncorne Allowance for other funds used during instruction 2,047 5.030 32,828

andDeducilons Federalincome tax 1,683 17,520 13,880

Disallowed project costs - (55,860) -

Other, net 6,901 8,831 6,725

Total Other income and Deductions 10,631 (24.479) 53 433

Income Before interest Charges 149,505 97,846 169.254

Inferest Charges tong term debt 72,270 73,489 74,571

Other, nel 2,898 2,814 2,142

Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction (1,777) (2,696) (11,978)

Total Interest Charges 73,p 73.607 64.735

income Before Cumulative Effect
of Accounting Change 76,114 24,289 104,519

Cumulative Effect for Years Prior to 1987 of Accounting
Change for Disallowed Costs (less related Federal

(193 000) -income tax benefits of $65,000) -

Net income (less) 76,114 (168,711) 104,519

Dividends on Prefermd Stock 7,348 8.147 8 05F

Earnings (loss) Applicable to Common Stock $ 68,7M 5(176.858) $ 96.461

Weighted Average Number of Shares for Period (000's) 30,513 29,728 28,927

Earnings (toss) per Common Share
-Before Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change $2.25 $ .54 $3.33
-Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change - (6 49) -

Total $2.25 $f5.95) 53.33

Statement of Retained Earnings

(Thousands of Dollars) Year Ended December 31 1988 1987 1986

Balance at Beginning of Period $ 17,617 5 249,505 $216,795

Add
Net income (loss) 76,114 (168,711) 104,519

Total 93,731 80,794 321,314
,

Deduct
**''" Dividends declared on capital stock

cas Cumulative preferred stock 7,348 8,147 8.058

Common stock 45,832 55,030 63,751
,,s

Preferred stock redemption 641 - -

,
Total 54,021 63,174 t l .809

owuw. Balance at End of Period $ 39.710 '> 17,617 5249,505,

lhe accompanying notes are on integralpart of the financial staternents.

_- - _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - - _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ _________-_________-_ - ______ - ___ _ _ _
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Balance Sheet

1
!

(Thousands of Dollars) At December 31 1988 1987

- Assets Uti"& Plant !
E O ic $ 1,558,001 $1,031,334 j

Gas 272,377 258,828 |
Common 86,523 81,637. '

Nuclear fuel 206,021 188,049 |

2,122,922 1,559,848
Less: Accumulated depreciation 507,948 457,605 ,

Nuclear fuel amortization 145,928 129,235 17 |
1,469,046 973,008 l

)|
Construction work in progress 41,044 501,738

Net Utility Plant 1,510,090 1,474,746

Current Assets 1
Cash and cash equivalents 73,031 60,146 !
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts: !

1988-$5,526; 1987-$5,498 63,728 53,709 !
Unbilled revenue receivable 45,853 -- |
Receivable under Nine Mile cotenant agreement - 40,600

'

Materials and supplies, at average cost ,

Fossil fuel 8,220 9,707 !
Construction and other supplies 9,178 10,544 :

Prepayments 11,303 9,603 |

TotalCurrent Assets 211,313 184,309 t

Deferred Debits .

Sterling project property loss 10,537 19,052 |
Unamortized debt expense 13,072 14,678 ,

Deferred finance charges-Nine Mile project 44,656 73,631 i
Other 33,750 24,165 !

Total Deferred Debits 102,015 131,526 !

Total Assets $ 1,823,418 $1.790,581 |

Capitall:,ation and cavitalliation |
Liabilities Long term debt-mortgage bonds 8 651,076 $ 703,426 !

-promissory notes 141,900 141,900
Preferred stock redeemable at option of Company 67,000 67,000 :
Preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption 30,000 50,797
Common shareholders' equity ;

Common stock 504,907 494,018 ;

Retained earnings 39,710 .17.617 |
Total Common Shareholders' Equity 544,617 511,635

Total Capitalization 1,434,593 1,474,758

- long Term Liability-Department of Energy 51,016 47,773

Current Liabilities J
tong term debt due within one year 34,750 2,750 :

Preferred stock redeemable within one year - 812 i

Accounts payable 37,031 32,833 |
Dividends payable 13,054 13,297 |

Taxes accrued 5,992 3,423

Interest accrued 15,652 15,922

Pension costs accrued 1,885 1,359 .<

Other 17,869 20,108 |

Total Current Liabilities 126,233 90.504 |

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities >

Accumulated deferred income taxes 117,345 86,884 !

Deferred unbilled revenue 39,780 - !
Deferred finance charges-Nine Mile project 44,656 73,631 |
Other 9,795 17.031 ,

- Total Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities 211,576 177,546

Commitments and Other Matters (Notes 10 and H)
Total Capitalization and Liabilities $ 1.823,418 $1,790,581

The accompanying notes are an integralpart of the financial statements
t

- - - - _ _ - _ _ _ _ - _ - - _ _ -_-



Statement of Cash Flows

(Thousands of Dollars) Year Ended December 31 1988 1987 1986

Cash Flow (mm Net income (loss) $ 76,114 5(168,711) $ 104,519

Opemtions Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided from operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 69,703 55,530 52,072 -

Amortization of nuclear fuel 19,945 20,678 18,598

Deferred fuel-electric (1,020) (151) 2,655
Deferred income taxes, net 28,124 4,984 22,810

18 Allowance for funds used during construction (3,824) (7,726) (44,806)
\ Disallowed project costs-Nine Mile plant - 248,860 -

Unbilled revenue, net (8,528) - -

Changes in certain current assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (10,019) 746 12,037

'

Receivable under Nine Mile cotenant agreement 40,600 - (40,600)
Materials and supplies-fossil fuel 1,487 3,444 (1,438)

-construction and other supplies 1,366 527 (1,770)
Taxes accrued 2,569 7,105 (4,981)
Accounts payable 4,724 5,014 (17,669)
Interest accrued (270) 1,686 (349)
Other current assets and liabilities, net (3,928) 5,891 2,694

Other, net (6,644) (4,972) (3,021)

Total Operating $ 210,399 $ 172,905 $ 100,751

Cash Flow (min Utility Plant
InvestingActivities Plant additions S (96,439) $(110,139) $(194,315)

- - 40,000Receivable under Nine Mile cotenant agreement
Nuclear fuel additions (17,972) (18,552) (14,893)
Less: Allowance for funds used during construction 3,824 7,726 44,806

Additions to Utility Plant (110,587) (120,965) (123 802)
Sterling project property loss (95) 17,023 -

Other, net (1,056) (436) (548)

TotalInvesting $(111,738) $(104,378) $(124,350)

Cash Flow (mm Proceeds from:
FinancingActivities Sale of common stock $ 11,189 $ 16,268 $ 18,827

Sale of preferred stock - 30,000 -

Sale of long term debt, mortgage bonds 25,500 75,000 75,000

Sale of long term debt, promissory notes - 50,000 -

Net borrowings (repayments) under:
Short term debt, net - (18,000) 18,000

Retirements of:
Preferred stock (22,758) (23,462) (2,472)
Long term debt (45,833) (67,750) (52,750)

Capital stock expense 8 (1,993) (166)
Discount and expense of issuing long term det * (496) (4,476) (3,729)
Dividends paid on preferred and common stock (53,423) (67,949) (71,459)
Other, net 37 203 86

Total Financing $ (85,776) $ (12,159) $ (18,663)

Increase (decrease)in cash and cash equivalents $ 12,885 $ 56,368 5 (42,262)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year S 60,146 $ 3,778 $ 46,040

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year S 73,031 $ 60,146 5 3,778

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information-

Year Ended December 31 1988 1987 1986

Cash Ibid Interest paid (net of capitalized amount) $ 71,124 5 62,175 5 63,485
%

cmara. During the Year income taxes paid $ 10.521 5 22,404 $ 28,998

The accompanymg notes are an integralpart of the fmanualstatements

_ _ _ _ _ - - _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ -_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ __ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - - ___ .__ __
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Notes to Financial Statements
q
|

| Ate 1. Summary of Accounting Policies
, - Genemi. The Company is subject to regulation by the Rates and Recenue. Revenue in 1987 and 1986 was

Public Service Commission of the State of New York recorded on the basis of meters read during the calen-
(PSC) under New York statutes and by the Federal dar year. In addition, beginning in July 1988, as part of,

Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) as a licensee a rate decision, the PSC approved recording of unbilled
and public utility under the Federal Power Act. The revenue. Accordingly, approximately $42 million
Company's accounting policies conform to generally associated with the change in accounting will be 19

accepted accounting principles as applied to New York amortized to income during the period July 1988 to
State public utilities giving effect to the rate-making and July 1990. Unbilled revenue recognizes service ren-
accounting practices and policies of the PSC. dered subsequent to the maer read date but prior to

the end of the accounting period. In connection with
E fn December 1986, the Financial Accounting S the change m accounting, approximately $7.2 milhon

~ dards Board (FASB) issued its Statement of Financial nd !1.3 million have been recognized in the Statement
Accounting Standards No. 90 (SFAS-90) with respect to, fInc me ,m 1988 for electnc and gas, respectively,
among other things; the financial accounting for dis-
allowed costs of recently completed plants. Under 5 Tariffs for electric and gas service include fuel cost
SFAS-90, a loss must be recognized when it becomes adjustment clauses which adjust the rates monthly to

probable that some portion of the costs of the plant will reflect changes in the actual average cost of fuels. The

be disallowed for rate-making purposes and a reasona- electric fuel adjustment provides that ratepayers and

ble estimate of the amount of the disallowance can be the Company will share the effects of any variation from

made. SFAS-90 is generally effective beginning in forecast monthly unit fuel costs on an 80%/20% basis

' 1988 with earlier application encouraged, but applies to up to a $2.6 million cumulative, after tr.x, annual gain

plant costs disallowed prior thereto. The Company or loss to the Company. Thereafter,100 percent of addi-

elected to adopt SFAS-90 in the third quarter of 1987 for tional fuel clause adjustment amounts are assigned to

- its investment in Nine Mile Point Nuclear Plant Unit ratepayers. There is also an 80%/20% sharing of vari-

No. 2 (Unit 2). ances in gains or losses from PSC established forecast
amounts related to margins on electricity sales to other

- . In adopting S' AS-90, the Company presented the= F electric utilities. In addition, there is a similar
cumulative effect of the accounting change prior t 80%/20% sharing process of variances from forecasted
January 1,1987 in the Statement of Income rather than revenues derived from sales to large gas customers that
restate previously issued financial statements. Refer t can use alternate fuels. This process limits any loss to
Note 10 for additional information. the Company to $1 million pretax per year if t'hese cus-

'E in November 1987, the FASB issued SFAS-95, tomers utilize their alternative fuels.

which established a Statement of Cash Flows that The gas department tariffs provide a separate but ''

=

replaced the Statement of Changes m Financial Posi' equivalent rate, excluding the cost of gas, to reflect
tion. Th,s new standard was adopted by the Company charges for the transportation of privately owned gasi

m 1988. For comparative purposes, the Company has through the Company's facilities.
'

retroactively applied the provisions of SFAS-95 to 1987
-

and 1986. For purposes of this statement, the Company Deterred ruel costs. Fuel costs which are recover-
considers cash equivalents to be short-term invest" able under the electric and gas cost adjustment clauses
ments of three months or less. neluded in the tariff schedu'les of the Company are

f In June 1988, the Board of Directors authorized the deferred until they are billed to customers. A reconcilia-

creation of Utilicom, Inc. as a wholly owned subsidiary, tion of recoverable gas costs with gas revenues is done

' Utilicom develops and markets computer software to annually as of August 31, and the excess or deficiency is !

assist customers in complying with state and federal refunded to or recovered from the customers during a j

environmental and safety regulations. Authorization subsequent twelve-month period. |
from the PSC is pending and the subsidiary activity has Utility Plant, Depreciation and Arnortir,ation.
to date been , sigmficant. Thc ost of additions to utility plant and replacement of '

;m

E A description of the Company's principal account- retirement units of property is capitalized. Cost includes |
ing policies follows. labor, material, and similar items, as well as indirect ]

(%ote 1 amtmued on page 20)

- _ __ _



Notes to Financial Statements

(Contmuedkom mne Yh |

charges such as engineering and supervision, and is the Company's share of Unit 2's decommissioning
recorded at original cost. See Note 10 for discussion of costs are estimated to be approximately $135.4 million
Unit 2. The Company capitalizes an allowance for at license expiration in the year 2026. Through Decem-
funds used during construction approximately equiva- ber 31,1988, the Company has accrued and recovered
lent to the cost of capital devoted to plant under con- in rates $22.1 million for this purpose and is currently ,

20 struction that is not included in its rate base. accruing additions to a reserve at a rate of approxi-
Replacement of minor items of property is included in mately $3.5 million per year based on a graduated
maintenance expenses. Costs of depreciable units of revenue requirement methodology adopted by the PSC.
plant retired are eliminated from utility plant accounts, (See Note 11.)
and such costs, plus removal expenses, less salvage, are
charged to accumulated depreciation and amortization. Allowance for Funds Used During Construction.

. . .
The Company capitalizes an Allowance for Funds Used

=_ Depreciat. ion m the financial statements is During Construction (AFUDC) based upon the net cost
provided on a stra,ght-line basis at rates based on the of bormwed funds for construction purposes, and ai

estimated usefullives of property, which have resulted reasonable rate upon the Company's other funds when
i in provisions of 3.6% per annum of average depreciable so used. In accordance with an order issued by the

property m each of :he last three years. Amortization FERC, AFlJDC is segregated into two components and
mcludes $8.6 milhon m 1988, $6.5 milh,on m 1987 and c assified in the Statement of Income as Allowance for
$5.5 milh.on m 1986 related to the Sterling project prop- Borrowed Funds Used During Construction, an offset to
erty loss. Interest Charges, and Allowance for Other Funds Used

During Construction, a part of Other incomc.
Nuclear Fuel Disposal Cests. The Nuclear Waste
Policy Act (Act) of 1982, as amended, requires the ,iE Effective July 16,1984, pursuant to PSC authoriza-
United States Department of Energy (DOE) to establish tion, the Company discontinued accruing AFUDC on
a nuclear waste disposal site by 1998 and to take title to $50 million of construction work in progress related to
nuclear waste. The Act provides for a determination of its investment in Unit 2 for which a cash return was
the fees collectible by the DOE for the disposal of being allowed through its ixlusion in rate base. An
nuclear fuel irradiated prior to April 7,1983 and for additional $150 million and $230 millon were included
three payment options. The option of a single payment in rate base, effective July 9,1985 and July 14,1986,
to be made at any time prior to the first delivery of fuel respectively, as autbolized by the PSC, and AFUDC
to the DOE was selected in June 1985. The Company accruals were likewise discontinued. The PSC also
estimates the fees, including accrued interest, owed to ordered in 1981 that amounts be accumulated in
the DOE to be approximately $51.0 million at Decem- deferred debit and credit accounts equal to the amount

ber 31,1988. The Company has collected in rates an of AFUDC which was no longer accrued. The balance
amount sufficient for the disposal of nuclear fuel irradi- in the deferred credit account would be available to
ated prior to April 7,1983. The estimated fees are classi- reduce future revenue requirements over a period
fied as a long-term liability and interest is accrued on ; substantially shotter than the life of Unit 2 and the
quarterly basis. The Act also provides for the disposal of balance in the deferred debit account would then be
nuclear fuel irradiated after April 6,1983, in exchange collected from customers over a longer period of time.
for a charge of one mill (5.001) per KWH generated at in July 1988, in accordance with PSC Opinion 88-21,
nuclear plants. This charge is currently being collected the Company eliminated by offset one-half of the
from customers and paid to the DOE pursuant to PSC deferred debit and credit balances in connection with
authorization. the unused portion of customer prepaid financing costs

associated with Unit 2 (See Note 10), reducing the*

Nuclear Decommissioning Costs. Decommission- cumulative balance to $44.7 million. In accordance with
ing costs (costs to take the plant out of service in the PSC Opinion 86-17, issued July 14,1986, $10.875 mil-*

future) for the Company's Ginna Nuclear Plant are esti- lion of these accruals were amortized over the rate yearn=

mated by the PSC to be approximately $179.1 million in commencing August 1,1986. The deferred credit wasad

the year 2006 when the permanent license expires, and discharged through the income Statement in 1986 and

_

- - - - - - - -- -___-- _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ , , _ _ _ _ _ _ , _ __
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1987, while the deferred debit was reclassified into a of enactment for the effect of changes in tax laws or
separate deferred debit account. In connection with the rates. Additionally, the Company may also be required i

- Company's current rate settlement, approximately to provide deferred taxes for the effect of taxes previ-
$4 million will be amortized through the income ously flowed through the income Statement. The

,

statement commencing August 1,1989. Company is presently unable to estimate the effects of '

the ' adoption of SFAS-96, but absent additional changes 21 4
,_.

: In September 1987, the Company wrote off n the Federal tax code, the Company does not believe
. $22.1 milhon in AFUDC that had been recorded in the earnings impact to be significant.

1987 applicable to PSC disallowed expenditures
in Unit 2. Retirement IIcalth Care and Life Insumnce

L2 The gross rates approved by the PSC for pur- Benefits. The Company provides certain health care

poses of computing AFUDC were: 10.25% effective and life insurance benefits for retired employees and'

. January 1,1988; 10.20% effective August 1,1987 through health care coverage for surviving spouses of retirees.

December 31,1987; 10.60% effective August 1,1986 Substantially all of the Company's employees may!'

. through July 31,1987; and 12.00% effective for the seven become eligible for these benefits if they reach retire-

months ended July 31,1986. AFUDC on certain major ment age while working for the Company. These and

construction projects; however, including Unit 2, has similar benefits for active employees are provided

been applied at a reduced rate which is net of the. through insurance companies whose premiums are

. incoine tax effect of the interest portion of AFUDC. The based upon the experience of benefits actually paid. ]
'

net-of-tax rates used on these projects for 1988,1987 The Company recognizes the costs of providing these

and 1986 were 8.55%,8.47% and 9.32%, respectively. benefits by a current charge to expense. The cost of
. providing these benefits was approximately $1.8 million

FederalIncome Tax. For income tax purposes, in 1988, $1.8 million in 1987 and $1.6 million in 1986.

depreciation is computed using the most liberal
methods permitted, in addition, certain costs capital. Earnings and Dividends ItrShare. Ecrnings
ized for financial reporting purposes were deducted cur. pplicable to each share of common stock are based on

! rently for income tax purposes in accordance with the the weighted average number of shares outstanding

internal Revenue Code prior to the enactment of the during the respective years. The pro forma earnings'

Tax Reduction Act of 1986. The resulting tax reductions (loss) per share, assuming the accounting change
,

were offset by provisions for deferred income taxes only described above and in Note 10 was applied retro-

to the extent ordered or permitted by regulatory actively, are $.54 in 1987 and $(3.33)in 1986,

authorities. The cumulative balance of tax deductions
not offset by provisions for deferred income taxes
through 1988 is approximately $395 million.

5 The Company provides for full normalization of
depreciation and investment tax credits. The Tax
Reform Act of 1986 provided for the repeal of invest-

. ment tax credits; however, some credits continue to be
available under the transitional rules contained in
theTax Act.

5 The Company uses the separate-period approach
.in calculating the interim quarterly tax provision.

5 SFAS-96, Accounting for income Taxes (as amended
by SFAS 100). was issued in December of 1987 and has

; not yet been adopted by the Company. SFAS-96
requires adoption in calendar year 1990 and that a
deferred tax liability or asset be adjusted in the period

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ - _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ -
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ote 2. FederalIncome Taxes (Thousands of Dollars)-

The provision for Federal income taxes is distributed between operating expense and other income based upon the
treatment of the various components of the provision in the rate-making process. The following is a summary of
income tax expense for the three most recent years. _

1988 1987 1986

22 Charged to operating expense:
5 Current $20,363 $ 32,781 $ 22,521

Deferred 20,299 23,144 37,304

Total 40,662 55,925 59,325

Charged (Credited) to other income:
Current (9,508) 640 614

Deferred 7,825 (18,160) (14,494)

Total (1,683) (17,520) (13,880)

Total Federal income tax expense $38.979 $ 38.405 $ 45.945

5 The following is a reconciliation of the difference between the amount of Federal income tax expense reported in
the Statement of Income and the amount computed by multiplying the income by the statutory tax rate.

1988 1987 1986

% of % of % of

Pretax Pretax Pretax

Amount income Amount income Amount income

income before cumulative effect
of accounting change $ 76,114 $24,289 $104,519

Add: Federal income tax expense 38,979 38,405 45,945

income before Federal income tax $115,093 $62,694 $150,464

Computed tax expense $ 39,132 34.0 $25,078 40.0 $ 69,213 46.0

increases (decreases) in tax resulting from:
Expenses capitalized for financial

reporting purposes - (8.337) (13.3) (23,168) (15.4)

Disallowed project costs - 15,064 24.0 -

Difference between tax depreciation and
amount deferred 1,626 1.4 4,312 6.9 3,885 2.6

investment tax credit (3,763) (3.2) (3,701) (5.9) (5,177) (3.4)

Tax Reduction Act benefits deferred - 4,561 7.3 -

Miscellaneous items, net 1,984 1.7 1,428 2.3 1,192 .7

Total Federal income tax expense $ 38.979 33.9 $38.405 61.3 $ 45.945 30.5

f A summary of the deferred amounts charged or (credited) to income is as follows:

1988 1987 1986

Investment tax credit $ (3,763) $ (4,619) $10,145

Depreciation 29 519 26,956 12,855

Fuel costs 2,681 1,086 (5,035)

Sterling abandonment 585 (8,249) (1,597)' * * *

Capitalized overheads (265) 3,410 4,278ca'

""d Accrued revenue (442) (4,740) -

** Disallowed project costs - (8,960) -

* * " Other items (191) 100 2,164

Total $28.124 $ 4.984 $22.810

. _ - _- _ - _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ ______ ____
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J ole 3. Pension Plan
The Company has a defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all of its employees. The benefits are based
on years of service and the employee's compensation during the last three years of employment. The Company's
funding policy is to contribute annually an amount consistent with the requirements of the Employee Retirement
income Security Act. These contributions are intended to provide for benefits attributed to service to date and for
those expected to be earned in the future.

23
5 The plan's funded status and amounts recognized on the Company's Balance Sheet are as follows:

(Millions)
1988 1987

Accumulated benefit obligation, including vested benefits of $179.1
in 1988 and $180.2 in 1987 $191.3* $193.3*

| Projected benefit obligation for service rendered to date $276.4 * $285.0*
! Less-Plan assets at fair value, primarily listed stocks and bonds 303.8 276.9

(27.4) 8.1

Unrecognized net gain or (loss) from past experience different from that
assumed and effects of changes in assumptions 36.4 (1.5)

Less-Prior service cost not yet recognized in net periodic pension cost .1 -

Less-Unrecognized net obligation at December 31 7.0 5.3

Prepaid pension cost (pension liability) recognized on the balance sheet $ (1.9) $ (1.3)
*ktuanalprnent value

5 Net pension cost included the following components:

(Millions)
1988 1987

Service cost-benefits earned during the period $ 6.9 $ 7.2
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 22.5 20.4

Actual return on plan assets (31.0) (18.2)
Net an >rtization and deferral 12.4 1.3

Net periodic pension cost $ 10.8 $ 10.7

5 The projected benefit obligation at December 31,1988 and 1987 assumed discount rates
of 8% percent and 8 percent, respectively, and a long-term rate of increase in future compensa-
tion levels of 7 percent. The assumed long-term rate of return on plan assets was 8 percent. The
unrecognized net obligation is being amortized over 15 years beginning January 1,1986.

5 Pension cost for 1988,1987, and 1986 was $10.8 million, $10.7 million, and $10.0 million,
respectively. The PSC has directed the Company to defer for future disposition any differences
resulting from the calculation of pension cost pursuant to SFAS-87.

_
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ie 1 ote 4. Departmental FinancialInformat on
The Company's records are maintained by operating departments, in accordance with PSC accounting policies, giving
effect to the rate-making process. The following is the operating data for each of the Company's departments, and no
interdepartmental adjustments are required to arrive at the operating data included in the Statement of income.

(Thousands of Dollars)

1988 1987 1986
24

Electric Operating information
Operating revenues $ 543,583 $ 515,430 $ 486,961

Operating expenses, excluding provision
for income taxes 390,867 360,000 337,467

Pretax operating income 152,716 155,430 149,494

Provision for income taxes 34,093 48,788 52,051

Net operating income $ 118.623 $ 106,642 $ 97,443

Other information
Depreciation and amortization 5 60,444 $ 46,776 $ 43,753
Nuclear fuel amortization 5 19,945 $ 20,678 $ 18,595

Capital expenditures 5 91,941 $ 104,295 $ 108,095

Investment information
identifiable assets (a) $1,469,571 $ 1,483,860 $1,729,194

Gas operating information
Operating reveLJes $ 230,395 $ 216,058 $ 261,688

Operating expenses, excluding provision
for income taxes 203,575 193,188 235,536

Pretax operating income 26,820 22,870 26,152

Provision for income taxes 6.569 7.13 < <,774

Net operating income $ 20,251 $ 15.733 $ 18,378

other information
Depreciation and amortization $ 9,259 5 8,754 $ 8,319

Capital expenditures $ 18,646 $ 16,670 $ 15,707

Investment information
Identifiable assets (a) $ 257,200 $ 224,391 $ 219,716

(a) Excludes cash, unamom:ed debt c.ywnse and other common i ems.t

Inww,
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ote 5. Jointly Owned Facilities ote 6. Inng Term Debt

The following table sets forth the jointly-owned electric Mortgage Bonds
generating facilities in which the Company is participat-

(Thousands)ing. Both Oswego Fossil Unit No. 6 and Nine Mile Point P'i"'IP I A* ""'
Nuclear Plant Unit No. 2 have been constructed and are Dember 31
operated by Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation. Each

% Series Due 1988 1987
participant must' provide its own financing for any addi- 25

tions to the facilities. The Company's share of direct First Mortgage Bonds
5 S Oct.15,1989 5 12,000 $ 12,000

expenses associated with these two units is included in
I I 1 I5

the appropriate operating expenses in the Statement of $ I,
g 3 3 g4 3 ;60

Income. Allowance for funds used during construction 5.3 V May 1,1996 18,000 18,000
have been excluded from the construction costs 6% W Sept.15,1997 20,000 20.000
presented below. Various modifications will be made 6.7 X July 1,1998 30,000 30,000

throughout the lives of these plants to increase operat- 8 Y Aug.15,1999 ' 30,000 30,000

ing efficiency or reliability, and to satisfy changing 9W Z Sept.1,2000 30,000 30,000

environmental and safety regulations. 9% BB June 15,2006 50.000 50,000

8% CC Sept.15,2007 50,000 50,000

Oswego Nine Mile 9M DD Dec.1,2003 40,000 40,000

Fossil Point Nuclear 6% EE Aug.1,2009 10,000 10,000

Unit #6 Unit "2 10.95 FF Feb.15,2005 44,000 49,500

Net megawatt capacity 850 1,080 '2 % HH May 15,2012 10,500 10,500

awatts 204 151 13 % JJ June 15,1999 25,000 25,000

RG&Ei share-meg' cent-per 24 14 11 % KK May 15,1495 49,667 50,000

Year of completion 1980 1988 8.6 LL Aug.1,1993 75,000 75,000

8% MM May 1,1992 75,000 75,000

(Millions of Dollars) 11 % NN June 15,1993 60,000

Total estimated project costs $4.214.0 8% 00 Dec.1, 2028 25,500

RG%E's share 591.0 Second Mortgage Bonds

RG&E's actual construction costs 11 % A June 15.1993 100,000

~1987 50.7 5 36.0 685,667 706,000

-1988 0.6 12.2 Net bond premium (discount) 159 176

Expended by RG&E in prior years 76 7 539.8 Less: Due within one year 34,750 2,750

$78.0 5588.0 lbtal Lonc Term Debt $651,076 5703,426

5 For further information regarding Nine Mile Point 5 The First Mortgage provides security for the bonds
Nuclear Plant Unit No. 2 refer to Note 10. Pursuant to through a first lien on substantially all the property
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 90, owned by the Company (except cash and accounts
the Company, during 1987, completed a write-off in receivable).
recogmtion of a regulatory disallowance of a portion of _ Sinking and . improvement fund requirements=
the Nine Mile Nuclear Plant Unit No. 2 facility for rate-

aggreg te $333,540 per annum under the First Mort-
making purposes. The disallowance is not included in g ge, excluding mandatory smking funds of individual

,

this table. Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation esti-
series. Such requirements may be met by certification

mated total project cost, including allowance for funds I additional property or by depositino. cash with the
used during construction and prepaid financing costs, Trustee. The 1987 requirernent was met by certificationwhich are excluded from the table above, to be $6,533.0

I additional pro; erty. The 1988 requirement was met
million. Also not included are Company costs for initial with funds depos|ited with the Trustee, and these funds.

fuel loading ($13.0 million), common facilities ($20.0
million), operating spare parts, transmission facilities, b""y used for redemption of outstanding bonds of

wer
"S Nk'

post-in-service ad'ditions, and Company direct costs.
5 The Series EE, Series HH and Series 00 First Mort-
gage Bonds equal the principal amount of and provide
for all payments of principal, premium and interest cor-
responding to the Pallution Control Revenue Bonds,

nsa wnwmes on me n

___ . - _ - _____ _- ______-_-_____ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ - _ - _ - - _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ __ __ __ .
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Series A, Series B and Series C, respectively (Rochester PmmissoryNotes
Gas and Electric Corporation Projects) issued oy the (Thousands)
New York State Energy Research and Development
Authority through a participation agreement with the issued Due 1 8 19 7
Company. The Senes EE bonds are subject to a manda- November 15,1984 October 1,2014 $ 51,700 5 51,700
tory sinking fund beginning August 1,2000 and each Decemoer 5,1983 November 15. 201a 40,200 40,200
August 1 thereafter. Nm.e annual depos.ts aggregating .luly 22,1987 July 15,2027 50.000 50,000i

$3.2 milh,on wdl be made to the sinkmg fund, with the
Total $141.900 $141.900

balance of $6.8 million principal amount of the bonds
26 becoming due August 1,2009. 5 The Company is obligated to make payments of

5 The Series FF First Mortgage Bonds are subject to a principal, premium and interest on each Promissory

mandatory sinking fund of F2.75 million annually Note which correspond to the payments of principal,

which began on February 15,1986 and will continue premium, if any, and interest on certain Pollution

each February 15, with the noncumulative option to Control Revenue Bonds issued by the New York State

double the payment in any year up to a maximum of Energy Research and Development Authority (NYSERDA)

5 years. In February 1988 and 1989, the Company exer. as described below. These obligations under each note

cised this option and redeemed an additional $2.75 shall be deemed satisfied to the extent of funds drawn

million of Series FF Bonds in each year, under certain Letters of Credit discussed below. Any
amounts advanced under such Letters of Credit must be

5 The Series JJ First Mortgage Bonds are subject to a repaid, with interest, by the Company.
mandatory sinking fund of $2.5 million annually begin-
ning June 15,1990 and each June 15 thereafter. 5 The $5L7 million Promissory Note was issued in

counection with NYSERDA's Floating Rate Monthly
=_ The Series LL and MM First Mortgage Bonds are Demand Pollution Control Revenue Bonds (Rochester
not redeemable prior to maturity. Gas and Electric Corporation Project), Series 1984. This

5 In January 1988 the Company redeemed the obligetion shall be deemed satisfied to the extent of the

Series A Second Mortgage Bonds and exchanged them funds, if any, drawn on or before October 15,1994

for Series NN First Mortgage Bonds. All terms and under an irrevocable Letter of Credit issued by Irving

conditions of the Series NN Bonds are substantially Trust Company. The interest rate on this note for each

identical to the redeemed Series A Bonds. The Series NN monthly interest payment period will be based on the
~

First Mortgage Bonds are subject to a mandatory sinking evaluation of the yields of short term tax-exempt securi-

fund of $20.0 million annually beginning June 15,1989 ties at par having the same credit rating as said Series

and each June 15 thereafter. On November 1,1988 the 1984 Bonds. The average interest rate was 5.22% for

Company exercised its option to redeem $40 million 1988,5.04 % for 1987 and 5.08% for 1986.

principal amount of these bonds at a price of 105.22 %. 5 The $40.2 million Promissory Note was issued in

5 The bonds maturing in the neu five years are connection with NYSERDA's Adjustable Rate Pollution

$12 million in 1989 for Series S, $15 million in 1991 for Control Revenue Bonds (Rochester Gas and Electric

Series T, $20 million in 1991 for Series NN, $75 million Corporation Project). Series 1985. This obligation shall

in 1992 for Series MM, and $75 million in 1993 for t,e deemed satisfied to the extent of funds, if any, drawn
on or before November 30,1990 under an irrevocable

Series LL.
Letter of Credit issued by Westpac Banking Corporation.

The sinking fund requirements for the next five This Promissory Note bore interest at 6% % per annum
through November 14,1988. The interest rate wasyears are:
adjusted to 5.90% effective November 15,1988 through

(Thmand9 November 14,1989 and will continue to be adjusted
1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 annually.

Series NN $20.0()0 $20.000 $20,000
_ The $50.0 million Promissory Note was issued in=

Series FF 2,750 2,750 2,750 $2,750 $2,750

w, Seriesil 2.500 2.500 2.500 2.500 connection with NYSERDA's Adjustable Rate Pollution

Control Revenue Bonds (Rochester Gas and Electric
an $22.750 $25.250 $25.250 15.250 55.250

Corporation Project). Series 1987. This obligation shall
a be deemed satisfied to the extent of funds, if any, drawn

%
on or before July 31,1992 under an irrevocable Letter

cw of Credit issued by Citibank, N.A. This Promissory
Note will bear interest at 5%% per annum through
July 14,1990. Thereaf ter, the interest rate will be
adjusted annually.
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o 1 ole 7. Preferred and Preference Stock

Type, by Order of Seniority Par Value Shares Authorized Shares Outstanding

Preferred Stock (cumulative) $100 2,000.000 970,000'

Preferred Stock (cumulative) 25 4.000,000

Preference Stock 1 5,000,000
,

&c belou r for inundatory rederrtption requirements y

5 No shares of preferred or preference stock are reserved for employees, or for options, war-
rants, conversions, or other rights.

A. PrekrredStock, not subject to mandatory redemption:

Shares (Thousands)

Outstanding December 31 Redemption

% Series December 31,1988 1988 1987 (per share)"

4 F 120,000 $12.000 $12,000 $105

4.10 H 80,000 8,000 8,000 101

4% 1 60,000 6,000 6,000 101

4.10 J 50,000 5,000 5,000 102.5

4.95 K 60,000 6,000 6,000 102

4.55 M 100.000 10,000 10,000 101

7.50 N 200,000 20,000 20.000 102

Total 670.000 $67,000 $67.000

*May tw redeemed at any tune at the option of the Company on 30 days mimmum notice, plus accrued dwsdends in allcases

B. PirferredStock, subject to mandatory redemption:

Shares (Thousands)

Outstanding December 31 Redemption

% Series Decernber 31,1988 1988 1987 (per share)t

8.60 P $21,603 $105.00 Before 9/1/89

8.25 R 300,000 $30.000 30,000 108.25 Before 3/1/92

300,000 30,000 51,609

Less: Redeemable within 1 year 812

Total 300.000 $30,000 $50.797

1Thereafter at lesser rates

5 Mandatory redemption for Preferred Stock commenced on September 1,1984 for Series P.
The Company was iequired to redeem 8,125 shares per year, at $100 per share, by means of a
sinking fund provision, with the noncumulative option to redeem not more than 8,125 addi-
tional shares per year on the same terms. On August 10,1988, the Company purchased in an
open market transaction and subsequently cancelled 16,732 shares of Series P Preferred Stock.
On September 1,1988, the Company called for redemption and subsequently cancelled 16,250
shares of Series P Preferred Stock, which satisfied the sinking fund requirement due Septem-
ber 1,1988, and exercised its option to redeem additional shares. On December 1,1988 all out-
standing shares of Series P were called for redemption and subsequently cancelled. Mandatory
redemption of 60,000 shares per year commences on March 1,1993 for Series R. In the event
the Company should be in arrears in the sinking fund requirement, the Company may not
redeem or pay dividends on any stock subordin& to the Preferred Stock.

.

.
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ote 8. Common Stock ole 9. Short Term Debt-m

At December 31,1988, there were 35,000,000 shares of The Company had no outstanding short term debt at
$5 par value Common Stock authorized, of which December 31,1988 or December 31,1987 and there
30,785,811 were outstanding. There were 472,157 were no borrowings in the calendar year 1988. The
shares of Common Stock reserved and unissued under weighted average interest rates for borrowings in 1987
the Automatic Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Pur- were 6.58% for short term notes and 6.25% for com-

28 chase Plan. No shares of Common Stock are reserved mercial paper.
for options, warrants, conversions, or other rights. Net 5 On December 1,1988 the Company renewed its
gams or losses resulting from the reacquisition of

$90 million revolving credit facility for a period of three
- certain issues of Preferred Stock to satisfy smking fund

years. Commitment fees related to this facility
requirements (see Note 7) are shown as Reacquired amounted to $322,000 in 1988 and $341,000 in 1987.
Capital Stock.

5 The Company's Charter provides that unsecured
Common Stock debt may not exceed 15 percent of the Company's total

Per Shares Amount capitalization (excluding unsecured debt). As of Decem-
- Share Outstanding (Thousands) ber 31,1988, the Company would be able to incur

Balance, January 1,1986 28,496.809 5461,078 $6 million of unsecured debt under this provision. In
Automatic Dividend order to be able to use its revolving credit agreement,

Reinvestment and T2.713- the Company has created a subordinate mortgage
-

Stock Purchase Plan 28.238 669,057 16,747 which secures borrowings under its revolving credit
ESOP* 26.200 15.267 400
Savings Plus Plan -

agreement that might otherwise be restricted by this
pmvision of the Company's Charter.

Capital Stock Expense (166)

__

Reacquired Capital Stock (35)
,

Balance, December 31,1986 29.247,087 5479,704
Automatic Dividend

Reinvestment and 15.175- ote 10. Nine Mile Point Nuclear Plantm
--

Stock Purchase Plan 24.750 760,986 14,132

ESOP* 23.970 17,939 430 Nine Mile Point Nuclear Plant Unit No. 2 (Unit 2), a
Savings Plus Plan 14.499- nuclear generating unit in Oswego County, New York,

24.874 95,363 1,706 with an electrical capability of 1,080 megawatts, was
Capital Stock Expense (1,993) ccmpleted and entered commercial service in Spring
Reacquired Capital Stock 39 1988. Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation (Niagara)is

Balance, December 31,1987 30,121.375 5494,018 operating Unit 2 on behalf of all owner co-tenants pur-
Automatic Dividend suant to a full power operating license which the Nuclear

Regulatory Commission (NRC) issued on July 2, i987
- t s an 3 619,172 10.440 f r a 40-year term beginning October 31,1986. Under

Savings Plus Plan 16.000-
17.188 45,264 749 the Basic Agreement entered into in September 1975,

Capital Stock Expense 8 ownership, output, and cost of the project are shared by
Reacquired Capital Stock (308) five co-tenants: the Company (14 %), Niagara (41 %),

Balance, December 31,1988 30.785.811 5504.907 Long Island Lighting Company (LILCO)(18%), New
York State Electric & Gas Corporation (18%) and Centralcmploye siock own,nisp rian
Hudson Gas & Electric Corporation (9 %).

5 The NRC advised Niagara on December 20,1988,
following their senior managers' biannual performance
review of NRC-licensed nuclear power plants, thatw-
Unit 2 now warrants close monitoring by the NRC.c.
Plants in this category have been identified as having-

r*om weaknesses that warrant increased NRC attention. This
awo= conclusion was based on ar, NRC assessment of Unit 2's

overall performance during its first year of operation.
- Nine Mile ioint Nuclear Plant Unit No.1 (Unit 1), an

_
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adjoining facility entirely owned and operated by costs incurred for the construction of Unit 2. The Settle-
Niagara, had been categorized in June 1988 as requir- ment provided that, whatever the final construction
ing close monitoring by the NRC. In its December 1988 cost of Unit 2, the aggregate amount allowed in the co-
evaluation, the NRC indicated that increased licensee tenant rate bases would be $4.16 billion, reduced by
and NRC management attention is r eeded to ensure that prepaid financing costs. It also barred suits among the
performance improvement is achieved for both units. co-tenants based on Unit 2 design, engineering and

constmetion. !n order to gain its four co-tenants' concur-5 Unit 2 underwent an outage for planned main,
rence to limiting the aggregate rate base allowance for

tenance and inspection which began October 1,1988
and was stili in progress in late Ja'nuary 1989. Niagara

Unit 2 to the $4.16 billion level, Niagara undertook to 29
reimburse each of them for its proportionate share of the

advises that the outage will continue until mid,
difference between that figure and one of $4,45 billion

February 1989, delaying until late February the unit's
to which the PSC Staff and all co-tenants had earherreturn to full power. The extension of the current

greed. In September 1988, Niagara paid the Company
outage's duration, particularly in the wake of the NRC's $40.6 milh,on m connection with that undertaking.
action noted above, heightens certain regulatory uncer-
tainties facing the Company. The NRC's monitoring of 5 In a series of rate orders preceding commercial
plant conditions and the progress of outage work could operation of Unit 2, the PSC permitted most of the
lead it to require-as it has elsewhere-additional com- Company's $485 million allowed investment (its 14 %
mitments of time and effort that would preclude a near- share of $4.16 billion, or $582 million, less prepaid
term restart. In addition, the PSC has initiated proceed- financing charges estimated at $96 million) to be
ings to review outages which extend beyond planned reflected in its rates. During 1988, the PSC fixed
duration and may consider disallowance of some or all April 5,1988 as the Unit 2 commercial operation date
outage-related replacement power costs. Niagara has for Niagara and LILCO, but it has not yet taken formal
advised the Company that it does not believe the Unit 2 action on the subject with respect to the rates and
outage has been imprudently extended but is unable to accounts of the Company. The Company's rate case set-
predict whether the PSC will ins'itute such a proceed- tiement, which the PSC approved on July 20,1988,
ing. Assuming there is not a substantial further exten- utilized a hypothetical date of April 15,1988 for Unit 2
sion, the Company believes the present outege will not commercial operation, but contemplated that an actual
have a material effect on its financial condition. commercial operation date would be separately

adopted. PSC confirmation of Unit 2 commercial opera-5 With the compla. 1 of construction and com-
ti n as of April 5,1988, as expected, would decrease

uncement of commercial operation, Niag' cent estimate,the Company s wnte-off, whereas select, ion of a date
ara is prepar.

Ly final cost figures for Unit 2. Its most re
later than the Conyany's previously assumed mid-May

announced in January :988, was $6.120 billion, exclud-
c mmercial operation date would require an additional

ing nuclear fuel. Adding approximately $413 mi!! ion of
writeoff of appmximately $6 million (net of tax) each

prepaid financing charges arising imm the inclusion month. In addition, resolution of the disputed items d,s-i
of construction work in progress in the rate bases of

cussed below could result m additional adjustments to
certain co-tenants, that sum is equivalent to a total
Unit 2 cost of $6.533 billion. The Company's estimated the Company s allowable mvestment m rate base.

share of that $6.533 billion total Unit 2 cost, including 5 Despite the Settlement and the PSC October 1986
its applicable share of prepaid financing costs, would be order approving it, the co-tenants and PSC Staff have
approximately $951 million ($591 million of construc- disagreed on its implementation and interpretation in
tion costs, $258 million of Allowance for Funds Used several separate proceedings. In one proceeding stem-
During Construction [AFUDC] and $102 million of ming from a Niagara rate case the PSC disallowed costs
prepaid financing costs). At December 31,1988, exclud- for certain common facilities and certain other costs
ing the adopt %n of a new accounting standard for the the co-tenants considered outside the scope of the
reporting of disallowed costs of recently completed Settlement. Tae Company's investment in these items
plants (discussed below), the Cempany had incurred at project completion is estimated to be $20 million.
construction-related costs of $929 million ($588 million The PSC also decided that the tax benefits associated
of construction costs, $245 million of AFUDC and with the disallowance should be calculated on a dis-
$96 million of prepaid financing costs). counted present value basis, utilizing a 34 % tax rate

5 Certain of those costs, however, were disallowed mther than a KA tax rate proposed by the co-tenants.
The Company, m its 198t wnte-offs (dgeussed below),

,

for ratemaking purposes. In October 1986, the PSC did not recognize the effect of discountmg m its deter-
approved a se'ttlement (the " Settlement") with the co- mination of the Federal income tax benefits applicable
tenants of its proceeding to inquire into the prudence of

note 10 contmued an pay 30)

-- _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ . _ _ _ _ _ . _ _ _ _ _ _ _ . _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
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to the disallowance since the nominal tax benefits at E The computation of the net disallowance as shown
. the 34 % rate will be ultimately recovered for the benefit . above was as follows:
of the shareholder, However, the PSC did discount
these tax benefits in determining the regulatory dis- (Dollars in Millions)

allowance in its June 1987 and July 1988 decisions.- Company Share of Total Plant Costs Based

Thus, the regulatory disallowance was approximately Up n Niagara's January 1988 Cost Estimate

$19 million greater than the Company has recognized fn$
" " P id

a eng ge nd st d lor
for financial reporting purposes. This difference in a Commercial Operation Date of

30 - regulatory treatment will, all other things being equal, mid-May 1988:
result in a reported return on equity which will initially Plant Costs $591

be less than the PSC authorized return on equity and AFUDC 258

which will be eliminated over the 10-year tax life of Prepaid Financing Costs 102

linit 2. The PSC also determined that the entire amount $951!

|
of disallowed costs will be recognized as a write-off to Common Facilities and Unshared Costs

common equity for rate-making purposes. On July 10, [thi the Compa Cons ers Outside
1987, the co-tenants commenced an action m State Which Are Being Litigated 20
Supreme Court, Albany County, seeking review of the

'

Totallnvestment 971
PSC decision on the settlement , implementation issues.i
In August 1987, the case was transferred to the Appel- Settlement Allowance Comprised of:
late Division, Third Department, and is pending. Plant Costs 480

Prepaid Financing Costs 102
:_ Other parties are also challenging the PSC's

582
October 1986 order approving the Settlement. That

Am unt Disallowed 389appeal has also been transferred to the Appellate Divi-
sion, Third Department, of State Supreme Court.

Less-Payment from Niagara Mohawk (41)Failure of the Settlement order to survive judicial chal- -Federalincome Tax Benefits (74)
lenge could result in the resumption of the PSC inquiry -AFUDC (12)
into the prudence of Unit 2 construction costs. It could Net Disallowance $262
also precipitate reinstatement of earlier PSC orders,
superseded by the Settlement, which had adopted an 5 Earnings information for 1988 as rep arted a,d for
incentive plan that limits rate recovery to 80% of those 1987 and 1986 modified to exclude the write-off and

|. revenue requirements necessary to support Unit 2 applicable AFUDC is as follows:
capital costs exceeding $4.6 billion and then imposed a-
$5.4 billion cost cap on prudently incurred Unit 2 costs December 31,

eligible for recovery through rates. 1988 1987 1986

Earnings Applicable to
_ in September 1987, the Company adopted SFAS-90

Common Stock (000's) $68.766 $63,042 $67,161
and recognized a loss from the disallowance arising from weighted average number
the Settleimnt. In adopting SFAS-90, the Company of shares (000's) 30,513 29,728 28,927
presented the cumulative effect of the accounting change Eamincs per Common Share $2.25 $2.12 32.32

prior to January 1,1987 in the Statement of Income and
did not restate previously issued annual financial state- E in subsequent rate cases of some of the co-tenants,
ments. The disallowance was comprised of: the Staff of the PSC has argued that certain post-in-

service capital additions for Unit 2, estimated at $13
(Dollars m. Millions) million for the Company, should be considered as

Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change $258 falling under the scope of the Settlement cap and
Less-Related Federal Income Tax Benefits (65) should not be afforded rate base treatmer,t. The co-
Net Effect Prior to January 1.1987 193 tenants disagree with the Staffs interpretation and

- AFUDC Accrued in 1587 on Disallowed Project Costs 22 vigorously oppose it. The settlement of the Niagara rate
' * = case, as well as that of the Company, contemplated acs Additional Disallowed Plant Costs Recognized

proceeding late in 1988 to examine on a single record
#

1 ss i e ated FederalIncome Tax Benefits () these and similarly disputed amounts. This proceeding
8* is now expected to begin following the conciusion of

47C""'"" the current Unit 2 outage. The Company is unable to
Net Effect in 1987 ' 69 predict what position the PSC will ultimately adopt, and
Net Disallowance $262 when and how much of these capital additions,if any,

may have to be written off.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _
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E in an action stemming from a delay in Unit 2's 5 The directors of the Company in Fall 1986 received
testing and power ascension schedule occasioned by a demand letter, from a lawyer purporting to represent
dciects in the reactor's main steam isolation valves, the two shareholders of the Company, threatening to bring
co-tenants in April 1987 commenced a lawsuit against a shareholders' derivative action on behalf of the
three companies involved in the furnishing of that Company. The letter demanded that the directors take
equipment. On August 1,1988, the co-tenants com- legal action against officers and directors responsible for
menced a second lawsuit, this one against both the firm what it alleged are losses sustained by the Company
. furnishing architect-engineering and construction- because of its investment in, and purported mis-
management services and a company which fabricated management of, the Unit 2 project. The Secretary of the 31

and erected piping for Unit 2. This second suit seeks Company responded to this letter and to a follow-up
|

damages arising from the breach of certain obligations one by stating that the Board did not believe that,
i

in the contractual arrangements with the defendants, under then current circumstances, any further investi-
which actions led to redesign, reconstruction and gation into the demands was warranted and requesting
higher cost for the completed work. The parties are cur- a statement of any specific facts believed to require
rently engaged in discovery procedures in both action. Neither the directors nor the Company officers
lawsuits. The Company cannot predict whether these have received further communications from this party'

suits will be successful or the amount of damages, if on this matter in some two years, but the same firm

any, which may be recovered. represents certain shareholders of Niagara in derivative
litigation commenced against that company's present

=- On January 26,1989 the co-tenants entered int and former officers and directors in May 1988. That suit
an agreement with General Electric Company (GE) seeks, in addition to the costs of the litigation itself,
relating to certam disputes which arose in connection damages allegedly sustained by Niagara shareholders

,

,

with the Nuclear Steam Supply System (NSSS) portion both from defend' ants' mismanagement of construction
I

of the construction of Unit 2, providing for settlement' of Unit 2, and resulting disallowance imposed in settle-
mutual releases, and confidentiality of the specific ele- ment with the PSC, an'd from their concealment and
ments of the agreement. The agreement provides that fraud in failing to disclose such mismanagement. The
GE will supply certain goods and services to the co- Company is u'nable to predict whether the threats and
tenants over a period of years without cost or at a demands received by it will lead to litigation similar to
reduced cost. Among other things, GE wdl supply that in which Niagara is involved.
engineering services which wdl improve Unit 2 s
technical specifications and which may ultimately 5 One of the co-tenant owners, LILCO, continues to

result in the increased capacity of Unit 2: software experience governmental pressures, financial problems
designed to help avoid unplanned outages; other goods and other difficulties that could adversely affect its
and services in support of Unit 2, and other goods interest in Unit 2. State legislation enacted in 1986
and services re'ating to turbine upgrading and main- created a public authority for the express purpose of
tenance at co-tenants' generating facilities. taking over LILCO and, among other things, disposing

of its interest in Unit 2. In mid-1988, LILCO and various
=- GE wd. l receive indemm.fication from the co-tenants parties opposing its efforts to license and operate the
against any future judgments against GE bmught by Shoreham Nuciear plant reached a settlement which,
other Unit 2 contractors related to the NSSS portion of had it gone into effect, would have ended the threat of
the construction of Unit 2, to the extent such judgments :O' takeover and attendant disposition of Unit 2.
result from successful co-tenant claims against the r * ertain conditions prerequisite to the Settlement's
contractors, and also mdemmfication for a portion of eHectiveness were met, others were not and its status
certain legal fees which GE may incur. remains uncertain. LILCO is understood to be paying its

5 The present value of the goods and services will be share of ongoing Unit 2 expenses and receiving its
recorded as an asset on the Company's balance sheet in entitlement to power. There is no immediate indication
1989 with an offsetting deferred credit also being that will change, but LILCO's weakened financial condi-
recorded, pending resolution of the rate treatment of tion and other difficulties impeding reolution of the
the Settlement. While the Company does not believe public takeover threat leave uncertain its longer-term
the current treatment of the Settlement is material, the participation in the Unit 2 co-tenancy.
Company regards this as a favorable settlement. No part ,

of the Settlement will be included in income pending i

PSC concurrence with the co-tenants' proposed
accounting for such settlement and related expenses.

i
j

i
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Notes to Financial Statements

\,
ole 11. Commitments and Other Matterse

CapitalExpenditures. The Company's 1989 con- the Company from commercial sources would continue
struction expenditures program involves an estimated to be funded by retrospective assessments, increased in
expenditure of $125 million, including $4 million of amount by the 1988 legislation to $63 million per
AFUDC. The Company has entered into certain com- licensed facihty for each nuclear incident, payable at a
mitments for purchase of materials and equipment in rate not to exceed $10 million per year. Those assess-

32 connection with that program. ments are subject to periodic inflation-indexing and to a
i5% surcharge if funds prove insufficient to pay clai; s.

NineMlleIbtntNuclearPlant. See Note 10. The Compa is interests in two nuclear units could
thus expose u to a potential payment for each accident

Nuclear Plant Decommissioning. Under account- of $71.8 mil'on (inflation-indexed) through retrospec-
ing procedures periodically reviewed by the PSC, the tive assessments of $11.4 million per year in the event
Company has been collecting in its electric rates of a sufficierely serious nuclear accident at its own or
amounts for the eventual decommissioning of its Ginna another U.S. commercial nuclear reactor. The Amend-
plant and, most recently, for its share of the decommis- ments also provide, among other things, that insurance
sioning of Nine Mile Point Unit 2. In June 1988, the and indemnity will cover precautionary evacuations
NRC issued new regulations establishing criteria for whether or not a nuclear incident actually occurs, that
various facets of decommissioning including acceptable Presidential compensation plans may provide coverage
alternative methods, planning, funding and environ- over and above that afforded under the Price-Anderson
mental review. The Company will comply with the NRC Act, and that a Presidential commission will study
final rule by June 1990, submitting a funding plan and certain compensation issues which arose during con-
establishing an external decommissioning trust fund. sideration of the Amendments, notably coverage for
To the extent that the NRC funding requirement is latent illnesses attributable to an accident.
greater than the corresponding decommissioning costs 5 Effective January 1,1988, coverage for claims alleg-
allowed m rates by the PSC, the Company may be ing radiation-induced injuries to some workers at
required to make deposits of the greater amount and nuclear reactor sites was removed from the nuclear lia-
will seek recovery in rates. The Company is not

. bility insurance policies purchased by the Company.
presently in a position to estimate the cost impact I Cov' rage for workers first engaged in nuclear-relatede
any such difference or anticipate what actions the PSC employment at a nuclear site prior to January 1,1988
will pursue in this matter. continues to be provided under the existing nuclear lia-

bility insurance policies. Those workers first employed
Insumnce. The Company is a member of Nuclear

t a ndar yhty ahn Januay 1, W88 am mmdElectric Insurance Limited, which provides insurance un a a new, m sty @ insuranw pmgram. Bu,s
coverage for the cost of replacement power during

new pmgr m mntains a mtrypdve premium assess-certain prolonged accidental outages of nuclear generat- ment feature whereby participants ,m the program could
,

ing units and coverage for property losses in exc'ess of
55'00 million at nuclear generating units. if an insuring

be assessed to pay incurred losses that exceed the pro-
gr m's reserves. Under the plan as currently estab-

program's losses exceeded its other resources available lished, the Company could be assessed a maximum of
to pay claims, the Company could be subject to * """ I I"" "" *"" 8'maximum assessments in any one policy year of
approximately $2.5 million and 58.0 million in the Gas Cost Recovery. Throughout the late 1970's and
eveat of losses under W replacement power and prop- early 1980's, many interstate natural gas pipelines
erty damage coveragu, respectively. signed long-term gas sales contracts with producers

5 On August 22,1988 the President signed into law under which the pipelines were obligated to take deliv-

the Price-Anderson Amendments Act of 1988(the ery of upecified percentage of maximum contract

" Amendments"), legislation which significantly volumes of natural gas or, il such quantities were not=
increased liability limits under the Price-Anderson Act, ta' 1 .o pay for them ("take-or-pay"). As a result ofa

extended its effectiveness until the year 2002, and fav : ail prices and a general trend towards energyw
modified it in other respects. Under the legislation, the conservation, many pipelines subsequently experi-cu=

ce public liability limit with respect to a nuclear accident enced a significant reduction in sales, leading to sub-

at a licensed reactor increased to approximately stantial take-or-pay liability to their producers. The

$7.3 billion. The difference between that amount and Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC), in

the amount of liability insurance currently available to response to this industry-wide problem, is allowing an

_ _ - _ - _ _ _ _ _ - - - _ - _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ ___-_____
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interstate pipeline to pass through to its customers, charged to customers for fuel costs. The Company
including downstream pipelines and local gas distribu- believes its fuel procurement practices to be sound, but
tion companies, between 25% and 50% of the pipe- is not able to predict what the PSC Audit Section may
line's take-or-pay cocts. recommend or what action the PSC may take.

E After receiving cormnents, the PSC appears to have EnehunmentalMatters. Operations of the 33
concludec m an order issued in October 1988, that it Company's facilities are subject to various Federal, state
could deny recovery of pipeline take-or-pay costs billed and local environmental standards.
by an interstate pipeline suppher and paid by a distribu-
tion company. No PSC response had been received on 5 in 1985, the New York State Department of

the Company's petition for reconsideration of that point Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) identified prop-

as of middanuary 1989. The PSC has scheduled hear- erty in the vicinity of the Lower Falls of the Genesee

ings to determine whether distribution companies River in Rochester as an inactive hazardous waste dis-

should be required to absorb some portion of such take. posal site. The NYSDEC conducted an investigation

or pay costs and how that portion recoverable from with which the Company as an owner of a portion of

ratepayers should be allocated among them. Staff of the the pmperty cooperated and, in March 1988, teleased a

PSC and the Company have entered into an interim set- report entitled " Expanded Phase 1 investigation-

tiement which would permit the Company to recover Genesee River Gorge (Lower Falls)". That report

from ratepayers 65% of the take-or-pay costs during the includes an assessment of the adequacy of available

continuation of the PSC proceeding but other parties to data, makes recommendations for additional phased

the proceeding oppose this interim settlement and the investigations and identifies property owners. The

PSC had not acted on it as of middanuary 1989. At Company is included in the list of property owners;

December 31,1988 the Company had deferred $1.1 however, a list of potentially responsible parties has not

million of billed take-or-pay charges. yet been completed. The site has been assigned Clas-
sification 2, "significant threat to the public health or

q 1.he Company .is unable to predict whether the PSC environment-action required." in the NYSDEC's regis-
will require that it absorb some portion of the take-or- try of inactive waste sites. Cleanup of certain areas of
pay costs billed by its interstate pipeline suppher or, if the site may eventually be ordered by NYSDEC. At
the PSC does so require, whether that action will another location along the River where the Company
survive judicial review. Moreover, because several p.ipe- owns property, a boring taken for a sewer system
lines currently have pending before FERC proposals for pmject in Fali 1988 showed a laver contaming a black
the recovery of take or-pay costs, the Company is v scous materiak There was no' indication that the,

unable to estimate at this time its overall exposure t material is migrating and it does not appear to be
,

such costs. I nked to the Lower Falls site. The find was reported to
the NYSDEC, but the Company is not aware of any

PSCFuels Audit. The Company was notified by the mm4 anon being conducted by the agency.
PSC in December 1988 that its Utility Operational Audit
Section would conduct an audit of the Company's fuel E If the NYSDEC requires remediation of these sites

procurement practices. The audit began in January 1989 by virtue of ownership and/or past site disposal activity,
with a series of informational requests, an introductory the Company may be fully or partially responsible for

meeting of the PSC Audit Section with responsible the costs of investigation and any site remediation. The

Company employees for orientation and explanation of Company cannot at this time predict whether the

procedures, and initial identification of key Company NYSDEC will investigate the material from the boring,
files. The PSC personnel have indicated an interest in what outcome will be reached in the Lower Falls site
reviewing the Company's procurement of coal, oil and investigation, and, with respect to either location, what
nuclear fuel. Their work, which is expected to include future studies may be performed, what remediation

visits to Company generating stations as well as to measures may be directed and what share of any such
mines, laboratories and other facilities involved in the activities the Company may be asked to assume.

procurement function, may take as long as a year to
complete. The Company expects to be given an oppor- Other Matters. The Company's contract with the

tunity to comment on any findings and recommenda- federal Department of Energy (DOE)for nuclear fuel

tions stemming from the audit. Similar audits at other enrichment services assures provision of 70% of the

New York utilities have produced recommendations Ginna Nuclear Plant's requirements throughout its

that the PSC require refunds of a portion of rates service life or 30 years, whichever is less. No payment

(%te 11 wntwed on yme 34)
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(ConunuedImm page 33)

' obligation accrues unless such enrichment services are Report of Independent Accountants ~ g
needed. The Company has secured the remaining w
30% of its Ginna requirements under additional 'PdreIlliterholtse
arrangements with DOE through 1989 and for the years imgg%
1991 through 1995; it is currently reviewing its options ruhester. New York 146N

. 34 for the remainder of 1990 requirements. The annual January 26.1989

cost of enrichment services utilized for the three most
recent years and that estimated for the next seven years

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of
(pnced at the most current rate) are as follows:

Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation

1986 $5,400,000
1987 4,700,000 5 in our opinion, the accompanying balance sheets and

1988 5,300,000 the related statements of income, retained earnings and

1989-1990 3,700,000 c sh flows present fairly, in all material respects, the finan-

1991-1995 5,500,000 cial position of Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation at
December 31,1988 and 1987, and the results of its opera-

5 There have been no significant developments in ti ns and its cash flows for each of the three years in the

nine- and ten-year old suits brought in various courts period ended December 31,1988, m, conformity with

against the Company seekmg an aggregate of $34.5 gennaHy apted accounting principles. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company smillion in compensatory and $64 million in punitive
m n gement; our responsibility is to express an opinion

,

damages for what are alleged to be personal injuries
nt se hnanaal statenents based og our audhsEe con-sustained through radiation exposure in 1974 at the . ducted our audits of these statements m accordance with

,

Company's Ginna Nuclear Plant. The Company,s m. .tial generally accepted auditing standards which require thati

assessment led it to believe that plaintiffs would not we plan'and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assur-
prevail on the merits. The cases have been generally ance about whether the financial statements are free of
inac'ive and no discovery has taken place in any of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
them. The Company's insurer disclaimed coverage for test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclo-
punitive damages. sures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting

principles used and significant estimates made by manage-
5 Related litigation seeking substantial compensa-

ment, and evaluating the overall fmancial statement
tory and punitive damages, brought by some of the P"*""I 6 n. We believe that our audits provide a reason-
I)laintiffs against the Company over an interoffice able bas. for the opinion expressed above,is
memorandum, has been concluded successfully with

.

no payment by the Company or its insurer. 5 As described in Note 10, the Company adopted in
1987 Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 90
" Regulated Enterprises-Accounting for Abandonments
and Disallowances of Plant Costs." The adoption of this
Statement resulted in the disallowed portion of the
Company's investment in the Nine Mile Point Nuclear
Plant Unit No. 2 (Unit) being recognized as a loss in the
1987 financial statements.

5 As a re: alt of continuing uncertainties with respect to
the Unit disassed in Note 10, the Company is unable to
predict whether further regulatory actions by the New York
State Public Service Commission with respect to its invest-
ment in the Unit will have, in the aggregate, a material

* effect on its financial position or results of operations.
'"' Accordingly, no provision for any additional loss that may
*"' result upon resolution of these uncertainties has been
"* made in the accompanying financial statements.

om
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Ccmmon Stock rnd Dividends

Dividend 1%iicy TaxStatus ol' Cash Dividends

The Company has paid cash dividends quarterly on its ' Cash dividends paid in 1988,1987 and 1986 were 100
_ Common Stock without interruption since it became pub- percent taxable for Federal income tax purposes.
licly held in 1949. The Company expects to continue this
policy, although the level of future dividend payments is Earnings and Dividends

- necessarily dependent on the Company's future earnings, 1988 1987 1986'
its cash flow and additional factors discussed under the

Earn.n s per weighted average share
.

heading Earnings / Summary presented in Management's
- Discussion and Analys,s of Financial Condition and 3ai Bdormmhive effect of

'

u rt r cnds on Common Stock are generally Num r r s (000 s)
paid on the Iwenty-fifth day of January, April, July and . Weighted average 30,513. 29,728 28,927
October. In January 1989, the Company paid a cash divi- Actual number at December 31 30,786 30,121 29.247
dend of $.375 per share on its Common Stock. Quarterly Number of shareholders at
dividends have been paid at this irate since October 1987, December 31 41,834 44,127 45,959
when the dividend was reduced from a quarterly rate of Cash dividends paid
5.55 per share. The October 1987 reduction resulted from ist quarter 6.375 $ .55 5.55
the Company's analysis of its 1987 rate decision, wherein 2nd quarter .375 .55 .55

the PSC recognized the disallowance of certain Nine Mile 3rd quarter .375 .55 .55

Two plant costs for rate-making purposes. The Company's 4th quarter .375 .375 .55

analysis indicated that the rate increase granted was not
adequate to maintain the quarterly Common Stock divi- Common Stock Tmding
dend at the prior level of $.55 per share.
f The Company's Certificate of incorporation provides Shares of the Company's Common Stock are traded on the

for the payment of dividends on Preferred Stock and New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "RGS".

: Common Stock out of the surplus net profits (retained
1988 1987 1986earnings) of the Company. The Company presently intends

to establish a retained earnings base at least equal to its Common Stock-Price Range

annual dividend requirement for both Preferred Stock High

and Common Stock before considering an increase in 1st quarter 17 % 25 % 28

the Common Stock dividend rate above the current 2nd quarter 18 % 19 % 28 %

quarterly rate. 3rd quarter 18 % 18 % 29 %
' 4th quarter 17 % 17 % 25 %

' Automatic Dividend Reinvestment and . I"
'''4"*"'' '" #*. 2h,

Stock Purrhase Plan
2nd quarter 15 % 15 % 24 %

Common Stock shareholders may have the dividends on 3rd quarter 16 % 16 % 24 %

all, or any designated number, of thf ir shares automati. 4th ouarter 16 % 14 % 21 %

cally reinvested in additional shares of Common Stock by
participating in the Company's Automatic Dividend Rein- Shareholder Pmfile-December 31,1988
vestment and Stock Purchase Plan. Participants may also
make optional cash payments of up to $5,000 each month Common Stock Shareholders

to acquire additional shares, whether or not they reinvest Women 13,284 ;

their dividends. Optional cash payments need not be Men 12,031
'

made on a monthly or other recurring basis. Participants joint Accounts 10,585 i

may change their method of participation, withdraw from Fiduciaries, Nominees, Others 5,934 !

Locationl the Plan or re-enroll as often as they wish. More informa.
tion on the automatic reinvestment of dividends may be United States, Except New York State 22,185

New York State, Except Franchise Area 7,163
|; . obtained by writing to the Agent, Chase Lincoln First '

12,352
|Franchise Area

Bank, N.A., Corporate Agency Department, Post Office
Box 1507, Rochester, New York 14603 or by calling the Shar olders O ng
Agent at (716)258 5854. 1-200 shares 22,479

201-500 11.322 ;

501-1.000 4,839 |

Over 1.000 3.194 ]

|
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Selected Financini Dr.ta

S:mmary ofOperations
(Thousands of Dollars) Year Ended December 31 1988 1987 1986 1985 1984 1983

Operating Revenues .
Electric $ 513,617 $ 489,215 $466,496 $429,450 $416,856 $407,948
Gas 230,395 216,058 261,688 269,562 291,628 -276,357

744,012 705,273 728,184 699,012 708,484 684,305
Electric sales to other utilities 29,966 26,215 20,465 44,103 60,103 55,644

Total Operating Revenues 773,978 731,488 748,649 743,115 768,587 739,949
36 Operating Expenses

Fuel Expenses
Ckctric fuels 64,767 61,292 52,186 64,776 82,106 88,745
Purchased electricity 30,299 26,467 30,144 27,804 35,497 33,820
Gas purchased for resale 128,774 121,736 160,904 174,644 187,453 189,526

Total Fuel Expenses 223,840 209,495 243,234 267,224 305,056 312,091

Operating Revenues Irss Fuel Expenses 550,138 521,993 505,415 475,891 463,531 427,858

Other Operating Expenses
Operations excluding fuel expenses 159,689 159,170 148,340 129,273 131,670. 132,032

Maintenance 52,575 46,124 44,767 42,518 41,013 39,418
Depreciation and Amortization 69,703 55,530 52,072 46,716 42,199 39.279
'laxes-local, state and other 88,635 82,369 84,590 81,983 83,013 80,118

Federal income tax-current 20.363 32,781 22,521 12.974 15,724 5,390
-deferred 20,299 23,144 37,304 44.978 41,885 32,794

Total Other Operating Expenses 411,264 399,618 389.594 358,442 355,504 329.031

Operating income 138,874 122,375 115,821 117,449 108,027 98,827

Other Income and Deductions
Allowance for other funds used during

construction 2,047 5,030 32,828 38,393 33,782 25,697

Federalincome tax 1,683 17.520 13,880 13,344 13,356 9,724

' Disallowed project costs - (55,860) - - - -

Other, net 6,901 8,831 6,725 3.899 261 1,579

Total Other income and Deductions 10,631 (24,479) 53,433 55.636 47,399 37,000

Income before Interest Charges 149,505 97,896 169,254 173,085 155,426 135,827

Interest Charges
Long term debt 72,270 73,489 74,571 70,373 63,103 56,761

129 68 - 19 936Short term debt -

Other, net . 2,898 2,685 2,074 2.227 2,464 2,048

Allowance for borrowed funds used during
construction (1,777) (2,696) (11,978) (14,339) (12,741) (10,168)

Total lnterest Charges 73,391 73,607 64,735 58,261 52,845 49,577

income from Continuing Operations, Before
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change 76,114 24,289 104,519 114,824 102,581 86,250

Discontinued Steam Operations - - - (6,356) 1,037 (2)
Cumulative Effect for Yean Prior to 1987 of

Accounting Change for Disallowed Costs - (193.000) - - - -

Net income (loss) 76,114 (168,711) 104,519 108,468 103,618 86,248

Dividends on Preferred and Preference i

Stock,at required rates 7,348 8.147 8.058 9,467 12,213 10,515

Earnings (loss) Applicable to Common Stock 8 68,766 $(176.858) $ 96.461 $ 99.001 $ 91,405 $ 75.733

we Weighted Average Number of Shares
c. Outstanding in Each Period,(000's) 30,513 29,728 28,927 27,641 25,101 23,389

Earnings (loss) per Common Share-Total $2.25 $(5.95) $3.33 $3.58 $3.64 $3.23 1u
Earnings (less) per Common Share-Continuing |

%
Operations $2.25 5 .54 $3.33 $3.81 $3.60 $3.23 1

Cash Dividends Paid per Common Share $1.50 $2.025 $2.20 $2.20 $2.04 - $1.84

i

!
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CondensedBalanceSheet
(Thousands of Dollars 1 - At December 31 1988 1987 1986 1985 1984 1983

ASSE'I5
- Utility Plant . $2,122,922 $1,559,848 $ L531,019 $1,446,916 $1,394,375. $1,310,459

Less-Accumulated depreciation and
amortization 653,876 586.840 571,022 532.647 489.938 449,807

1,469,046 973,008 959,997 913,969 904,437 860,652
Construction work in progress 41,044 501,738 768,905 710,194 554,331 424,875 '

' Net utility plant 1,510,090 1,474,746 1,728,902 1,624,163 1,458,768 1,285,527 37-
' Current Assets 211,313 184,309 141,222 144,217 151,042 135,403
Deferred Debits 102,015 131,526 114,340 82,092 64,269 75.927

Total Assets $1,823,418 $1.790,581 $1.984,464 $1,850,472 $1,674,079 $1,496,857

CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES
: C pttelization

Long term debt $ 792,976 $ 845,326 5 773,082' 5 765,511 $ 678,018 $ 611,282
Preferred stock redeemable at option

of Company 67,090 67,000 67,000 67,000 67,000 67,000
. Preferred stock subject to mandatory

redemption 30,000 - 50,797 43,485 45,922 47,562 49,187
Preference stock subject to repurchase 28,000

~ Common shareholders' equity
Common stock 504,907 494,018 479,704 461,078 405,200 385,921
Retained earnings 39,710 17,617 249,505 216,795 179.676 153.142

Total common shareholders' equity 544,617 511,635 729.209 677,873 584,876 539,063

Total Capitalization 1,434,593 1,474,758 1,612,776 1,556,306 1,377,456 1,294,532
tong Term Liability-Department

of Energy 51,016 47,773 - 44,950 42,214 39,084 35,363

.. Current Liabilities 126,233 90,504 118,346 98,270 .131,108 . 81,602
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities 211,576 177,546 208,390 153.682 126 431 85,360

Total Capitalization and Liabilities $1,823,418 $1,790.581 $1,984,464 $1,850,472 $1,674.079 $1,496.857

FinancialData
At December 31 1988 1987 1986 1985 1984 1983

_

Capitalization Ratios' (percent)
' Long term debt 56,8 58.7 49.3 50.5 50.6 48.6

Preferred and preference stock 6,5 7.7 6.7 7,1 81 10.9
Common shareholders' equity 36.7 33.6 44.0 42.4 41,3 40.5

Tctal 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0

Book Wlue per Common Share-Year End $17.69 $16.98 $24.93 $23.79 $2238 $22.09
R:le of Return on Average Common Equity

i

(percent) 12.68 12.45 " 13.38 14.93 16.01 14.97 i

. Embedded Cost of Senior Capital (percent) |

Long term debt 8.71 8.90 9.36 9.88 9.91 10.07

Preferred stock 6,72 7.09 7.20 7.27 7.37 7.37

- Effective Federal income Tax Rate (percent) 33.9 61.3 30.5 28.0 30.1 24.8

- Depreciation Rate (percent}-Electric 3.56 3.50 3.50 3.40 3.30 3.23
-Gas 2.96 2.98 2.99 2.98 3.12 2.96 i

! ' intere:t Coverages"* |
Elefore federalincome taxes (incid. AFUDC) 2.53 2.55 2.96 3.08 3.26 2.91 j

. (excid. AFUDC) 2.48 2.45 2.38 2.35 2.55 2.31
'

!: After federal mcome taxes (incid. AFUDC) 2.01 1.93 2.36 2.49 2.58 2.44

(excid. AFUDC) 1.96 1.83 118 1.77 1.87 1.84

* Includes Company's long term liabihty to the Department of Energy
.. . Excludes desallowed Nine Mde Tuv plant costs written offin 1987. ~|

**

*"AfvDCinduded m interest coverays prior to 1987 has not been restated to rettect the disallowance of certain Ntne Mile Two p| ant costs recogni:ed j

by the Conspany m 198: ;

]I!

|'
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Electric Department Statistics

Year Ended December 31 1988 1987 1986 1985 1984 1983

1
Electric Revenue (000's)

I Residenti4 $188,451 $178,933 5166,664 $155,193 $147,500 $143,455 |
Commercial 149,663 146,138 137,077 122,292 118,628 118,610

Industrial 120,490 118,479 116,321 110,135 109,052 103,598

Other 55,613 45,665 46,434 41,830 41,676 42,285 i

Electric revenue from our customers 513,617 489,215 4S6,496 429,450 416,856 407,948

Other elettric utilities 29,966 26,215 20,465 44,103 60,103 55.644

38 Total electric revenue 543,583 515,430 486,961 473,553 476,959 463,592 '

Electric Expense (000's)
Fuel used in electric generation 64,767 61,292 52,186 64,776 82,,06 88,745

Purchased electricity 30,299 26,467 30,144 27.804 35,497 33,820

Other operation 124,871 '26,320 113,497 96,194 97,612 100,412

Maintenance 44,060 37,641 36.573 35,013 33,535 32,444

Depreciation and Amortization 60,444 46,776 43,753 39,015 34,822 32,648

Taxes-local, state and other 66,426 6'.504 61,314 58.867 59.215 57.931

Electric resenue deductions 390,867 360,000 337,467 321,669 342.787 346,000

Operating income before Federal Income Tax 152,716 155,430 149,494 151,884 134,172 117,592

Federalincome tax 34,093 48,788 52,051 52,068 47A10 34,339

O erating income from Electric Operations (000's) $118,623 $106,642 5 97,443 $ 99,816 $ 86,762 5 83,253
J
Electric Operating Ratio % 48.6 48.8 47.7 47.3 52.2 55.1

Electric Salts-KWil (000's)
Residential 2,051,808 1,970,345 1,890.293 1,846,993 1,834,564 1,788,785

Commercial 1,792,162 1,732,939 1,657,606 1.591,670 1,539,602 1,491,736

Industrial 1,869,417 1 782,223 1,775,722 1,814,460 1,783,415 1,609,787

Other 483,730 463,256 452,756 452,142 452,189 462,089

Electric sales to our customers 6,197,117 5,948,763 5,776,377 5,705.265 5,609,830 5,352,297

Other electric utilities 1,149,900 1,047,654 925.318 1,404,504 1,554,392 1.370,239

Total electric sales 7,347,017 6,996,417 6,701,695 7,109,769 7,164,222 6,722.636

Electric Customers at December 31
Residential 290,037 285,988 281,630 277,758 273,050 268,764

Commercial 27,888 27.383 26,865 26,184 25,432 24,998

Industrial 1,392 1,381 1,368 1,362 1.459 1,425

Other 2,326 2,281 2,266 2.254 2,249 2,151

Total electric customers 321,643 317,033 312,129 307,558 302.190 297.338

Electricity Generated and Purchased-KWil (000's)
Fossil 2,214,588 1,877,922 1,491,167 2,211.246 2,285,761 2,431,144

Nuclear 3,884,884 3,793,021 3,603.116 3,613,104 3,143,923 3,027,160

Hydro 169,002 223,958 235,175 153,636 218.228 200,325

Pumped storage 292,305 246,925 237,663 240,375 205,760 226,612

Less energy for pumping (430,401) (387,546) (353,735) (373,537) (311,710) (342,853)

Other 2,195 4,554 1,850 4,354 3,846 3,111

Total generated-Net 6,132,573 5,758,834 5.215.236 5,849,178 5,545,808 5,545,499

Purchesed 1,705,755 E703.411 1,945,586 1,713,481 2,037,936 1,609,553

Total electric energy 7,838,328 7,462,245 7.160,822 7,562,659 7.583,744 7,155,052

Electric Generation Costs (000's)
Fossil $ 65,274 $ 59,695 $ 51,056 $ 71,898 5 72,706 5 80,909

Nuclear 74,661 58.965 56,136 49,772 50,020 45,904

Hydro 2,772 1,695 2,134 1,616 1,504 1,180

Other 401 465 274 776 362 431

Electric Department Fuel
Fossil -Total BTU (million) 23,425.796 20,083,347 15,896,376 23,140,883 23,627,034 25,670,771

-Cents per million BTU 201.40 209.55 216.69 237.09 232.64 252.67^

Nuclear-Total MU (million) 41,662,677 40,538,534 38,660,500 39.034,016 34,225,538 33,020.145
-Cents per million MU 49.07 52.30 48.49 46.85 50.67 57.38ma'

G" System Net Capability-KW at December 31
** Fossil 541,000 541,000 510.000 587,000 587.000 605,000

Nuclear 621,000 470,000 470,000 470,000 470,000 470,000
re,r

Hydro 47,000 47,000 47,000 47,000 47,000 47,000

Other 29,000 29,000 29.000 29,000 29,000 29,000##

Purchased 360,000 363.000 356,000 352.000 355,000 353,0_00

Total system net capability 1,598,000 1,450.000 1,412,000 1,485,000 1,488,000 1,504,000

Net IVak load-KW 1,275,000 1,205,000 1,100,000 1,076,000 1,075,000 1,037,000

Annualload Factor-Net % 60.0 60.8 64.7 65.4 63.9 63.9

_ _ . - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - - _ _ - - _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ - _ - _ _ _ _ - - _ - _ _ _ -_ _ __
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' Gas Deputment St:tistics

- Year Ended December 31 1988 1987 1986 1985 1984 1983

Gas Revenue (000's)
- Residential 6,439 $ 6,436 5 7,694 $ 8,403 $ 8,924 $ 8,910 I
Residential spaccheating '0,383 138,552 156,120 153,279 162,727 153,167 '

Commercial 44,781 43,311 52,653 53,568 56,518 53,636 !
Industrial 9,859 10,842 28,800 38,837 46,518 44,552
Municipal and other 18,933 16,917 16.421 15,475 16,941 16,092

Total gas revenue 230,395 216,058 261,688 269,562 291,628 276.357
Gas Expense (C30's)

Gas purchased for resale 128,774 121,736 160,904 174,644 187,453 189,526
Other operation 34,818 32,850 34,843 33,079 31,058 31,620 !
Maintenance 8,515- 8,483 8,194 7,505 7,478 6,974 |
Depreciation 9,259 8.754 8.319 7,701 7,377 6,631 |

Taxes-local. state and other 22,209 21,365 23,276 23,116 23,798 22,187

Gas revenue deductions 203,575 193,188 235,536 246,045 260,164 256,938

- Operating Income before Federal Income Tax 26,820 22,870 26,152 23,517 31,464 19,419 j
Federalincome tax 6,569 7,137 7,774 5,884 10,199 3,845

Operating income from Gas Operations (dOO's) $ 20,251 5 15,733 $ 18,378 5 17,633 $ 21,265 5 15,574 ;

Ga3 Opernhg Ratio % 74,7 75.5 77.9 79.8 78.5 82.5 |
Gas Sales-Therms (000's)

~

Residential 10,374 10,255 11,382 12.296 12,746 12,323
Residential spaceheating 267,697 244,655 253,101 244,593 252,518 232,380

,

Commercial 86,413 83,167 f:2.864 93,283 95.427 88,501 I
Industrial 20,174 22.033 56,621 76,263 90.266 82,895
Municipal 15,514 17,985 23.405 01.848 26.937 24,661

- Total gas saies to our customers 400,172 378,095 437,373 451,283 477,894 440,760
Transportation of customer-owned gas 83,594 67,496 24,589 618 - -

Total gas sold and transported 483,766 445,591 461,962 451,901 477,894 440,760

Gas Customers at December 31
Residential 24,139 24,834 25,865 27,202 28,438 29.246
Residential spaceheating 210,710 206,458 201,227 196,035 191,192 187,071
Commercial 17,213 16,771 16,330 15,816 15,323 15,020
Industrial 1,042 1,035 1,015 1,029 1,019 977
Municipal 1,039 1,026 1,009 990 977 970

Total gas customers 254,143 250.124 245.446 241,072 236,949 233,284

Gas-Therms (000's)
Purchased for resale 408,044 381,632 439,381 469,386 475,976 462,357
Other 1,967 2,317 5,996 14,943 18,039 16,479

. Total gas available 410,011 383,M9 445,377 484,329 494,015 478,836

Cost of gas per therm 31.76c 32.51 < 35.82t 37.53t 38.52t 40.51 <
Total D:.ily Capacity-Therms at December 31 ' 4,485,000 4,485,000 4,485,000 4,485,000 4,485,000 4,150,000

Maximum daily throughput-Therms 3,744,500 3,443,240 3,499,640 3,746,980 3,711,490 3,456,050
: Degree Days (Customer Bilhng)

For the period 6,871 6,439 6,742 6,412 6,784 6,305
Percent colder (warmer) than normal 1.2 (4.6) 1.3 (5.0) 1.1 (6.3)
*Alethod h>r deterinining daily capacity, based on current network anafysis, reflects the maximum demand which the transmission system can accept
without a dehciency

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ - _ - - - - - _ _ _ . _ - . _ _ _ __ _--



..

.. __ _.

Interim Financial Data

.

In the opinion of the Company, the following quarterly information includes all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring ad-
justments, necessary for a fair statement of the results of operations for such periods. The variations in operations reported on a
quarterly basis are a result of the seasonal nature of the Company's business and the availability of the Company's Ginna Nuclear ;

Plant. The cumulative effect of the accounting change related to the Nine Mile Two disallowed project costs and related write-offs
during the year 1987 are discussed in Note 10 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

(Thousands)
Earnings

40 Net Earnings (Loss) Per

Operating Operating income (Loss) on Common Share

Quarter Ended l'evenues Income (Loss) Common Stock (in dollars)

December 31,1988 $197,879 $26,454 $ 10,577 $ 9,071 $ .29

September 30,1988 172,848 37,879 21,979 20,079 .65

June 30,1988 166,615 28,396 12,517 10,546 .34

March 31,1988 236,635 46,145 31,042 29,071 .96

December 31,1987 $177,764 $25,256 $ (9,771) $ ('i,742) $ (.39)

September 30,1987 165,281 32.272 20.268 18.297 .61

Jur,e 30,1987 157,193 24,271 12,686 10,715 .36'

March 31,1987 231,250 40,576 (191,894) (194.128) (6.60)*

December 31,1986 $ 180,634 $23,433 $ 18,910 $ 16,926 $ .57

September 30,1986 150,835 26.664 22,620 20,636 .71

June 30,1986 162,991 24.539 23,130 21.085 .73

March 31,1986 254,189 41,185 39,859 37,814 1.32

* Restated frorn published quanctly data The curnulatwe citect ol the accounting change ($121 rnillion, net al Federalincome
tax benefits) has be"n reflectedin the hrst quarter restatement The hrst and second quaners reflect the discontinuance of
Alt!LK'on the dtsallourdproject costs (See Note 10 uf the Notes to the nnoncialStaternents )
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Direct:rs cnd Officers
(As of January 1,1989)

Boahd of Directors Committees of the Officers,

Board of DirectorsTheodore J. Altier Harry G.Saddock
former Chairman of the Board and Executive and Finance Chairman of the Board and

, ' Chief Executive Officer, Keith W. Amish Chief ExecutiveOfficer
- Altier & Sons Shoes, Inc. William Baldersion ||1 Age 59, Years of Service,38

Keith W. Amish Paul W Brigg" Roger W. Kober
' . Former Vice Chairman of the Board,- h3N,"!$r "ke. Jr. President and Chief Operating Officer

. Ikchester Gas and Electric Corporation - Waher A. Fallon Age 55, Years of Service,20

William Balderston ill At$r Robert C. Henderson>

R I ardson
~ Chairman of the Board, Harry a saddock Senior Vice President,

Chief Executive Officer and President, William G vonBerg Controller and Chief Financial Officerr

Chase Lincoln First Bank, N.A. Audit Age 48, Years of Service,25

PaulW. Briggs Paul W Briggs David K. Laniak
. Chairman of the Executive and Natacha R Dykman Senior Vice President, Gas, Electric
. Finance Committee, Theodore L innson Distribution and Corporate Planning
. Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation $"n'7; *4 Age 53, Years of Service,34y

,'" E Kent Damon M Richard Rose John W. OberPes
'

.

1 Former Vice President and Secretary, Waiam G v nBerg* Senior Vice President,.
Xerox Corporation Cepensation Custcmer and Administrative Services

Francis E. Drake, Jr. Witham Balderston til Age 49, Years of Service,27

' Former Chairman of the Executive and $"[j',iy,5 John E. Arthur
n

Finance Committee, Francis li Drake,Jr? Vice President.
Rochester Gas and Ekctric Corporation Walter A. Fallon ~, ' cal Projects
M*.tacha P. Dykman $$"['y ny,hy .t.; 09, Years of Service,33M

g g
- Former Chairman of the Board of Trustees, David C. Heiligman

Center for Governmental
ominating Vice President,

' ^'"Research, Inc. Sect tary and Treasurer
Da or *

Age 48, Years of Service,2a,Walter A. Fallon Natacha R Dykman

Former Chairman of the Board and constance M. Mitchell Howard E. Rowley
Anhur M. Richardson V ce President,Chief Executive Officer,
Harry a saddock

Eastman Kodak Company Gas and Transportation
*aiannian Age 61, Years of Service. 40Rog:r W. Kober

President and Chief Richard J. Rudman
Operating Officer, Vice President,>

. Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation Electric Transmission and Distribution

Theodore L trvinson Age 61, Years of Service,43

Former President and - Wilfred J.Schrouder, Jr.
Chief Executive Officer, Vice President,

Star Supermarkets, Inc. Employee Relations and Public Affairs

Con:ta ce M, Mitchell Age 47, Years of Service. 26
'

Program Director, Robert E. Smith
. Industrial Management Council of Vice President,

Rochester, New York, Inc. Production and Engineering

i Corneihis J. Murphy Age 51, Years of Service,29

Senior Vice President and Daniel J. Baler
General Manager, Assistant Controller
Eastman Kodak Company Age 42, Years of Service,5

Arthur M. Richardson John M. Kuebel
Presidem,~ Auditor
Richardson Capital Corporation Age 53, Years of Service,24

M. Richard Rose Alan A.lohrmann
President,. Assistant Treasurer
Rochester Institute of Technology Age 49, Years of Service,27

Harry G.Saddock
. Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer,

g' ' Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation
' William G. vonBerg -

Executive Director,
Executive Service Corps of {
Rcchester, Inc,
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